

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

RECEIVED APR - 5 2011
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

(Mark One)

☑

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to Commission file number 001-33737

Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc.

(Exact name of Company as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

84-1374481

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY

(Address of principal executive offices)

10020

(Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: 212-356-0500

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class

Common Stock, \$.001 par value

Name of each exchange on which registered

Nasdag

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

None

(Title of class)
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined by Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes □ No ☒
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes \Box No \Box

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer	Accelerated Filer	Non-accelerated Filer	Smaller Reporting Company	X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes \square No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \square No \square

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2010 was approximately \$55,153,830.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's common stock, \$.001 par value, as of March 10, 2011 was 33,207,498 shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information in response to Part III, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of this Report are incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed on or before April 30, 2011, with respect to its 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>
	PART I	
Item 1.	Business	2
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	9
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments	18
Item 2.	Properties	18
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	18
Item 4.	[Removed and Reserved]	18
	PART II	
Item 5.	Market Price of Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder	
	Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	19
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	20
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition	
	and Results of Operations	21
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	32
Item 8.	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	33
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting	
	and Financial Disclosure	33
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	33
Item 9B.	Other Information	34
	PART III	
Item 10.	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	34
Item 11.	Executive Compensation	34
Item 12.	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and	
	Management and Related Stockholder Matters	34
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	34
Item 14.	Principal Accounting Fees and Services	34
	PART IV	
Item 15.	Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules	36
Signatures		37

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT INFORMATION

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are "forward-looking statements regarding the plans and objectives of management for future operations. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included herein are based on current expectations that involve numerous risks and uncertainties. Our plans and objectives are based, in part, on assumptions involving judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe that our assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements included in this Report will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein particularly in view of the current state of our operations, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a statement by us or any other person that our objectives and plans will be achieved. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the factors set forth herein under the headings "Business," "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." We undertake no obligation to revise or update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason.

Item 1. Business

(a) General Development of Business

Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. ("RRCG") is a Delaware holding company which was organized on December 20, 2006. RRCG, through its various subsidiaries, is engaged in the investment banking business. RRCG's principal operating subsidiary is Rodman & Renshaw, LLC ("R&R"), a Delaware limited liability company organized on June 20, 2002. R&R is a broker dealer registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA"). On May 12, 2008, the RRCG formed Aceras BioMedical LLC ("Aceras BioMedical"), a joint venture through which RRCG, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC ("Aceras Partners"), will make principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, the RRCG formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary, Rodman Principal Investments, LLC ("RPI"), which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of the RRCG's principal-related businesses. RRCG and its subsidiaries, including R&R, are collectively referred to herein as "Company," "we," "our" or "us".

Overview

We are a full-service investment bank dedicated to providing corporate finance, strategic advisory and related services to public and private companies across multiple sectors and regions. We also provide research and sales and trading services primarily to institutional investors. According to Sagient Research Systems, we are the leader in the PIPE (private investment in public equity) and RD (registered direct offering) transaction markets. We have been ranked the #1 Placement Agent by deal volume of PIPE and RD financing transactions completed every year since 2005. The sectors that we currently serve include life science/healthcare, energy, metals/mining, financial services and cleantech and the regions we currently serve include the United States and China. Our primary product and service offerings include financing transactions, including private placements and public offerings. We also provide research and sales and trading services to institutional investors.

Recent Developments

On January 5, 2011, we entered into a definitive merger agreement in connection with our proposed acquisition of Hudson Holding Corporation (the "Merger"). Hudson Holding Corporation ("Hudson"), through its wholly owned subsidiary Hudson Securities, Inc. (referred to as "Hudson Securities"), provides a full range of corporate finance, advisory, and capital markets services and institutional equity research focused on the micro-, small- and mid-cap marketplace. Hudson Securities is dedicated to meeting the liquidity needs of its clients by providing execution solutions and making markets in over 15,000 U.S. and foreign securities. The terms of the Merger provides for each Hudson share to be exchanged for 0.0338 shares of our common stock. The transaction is valued at approximately \$7 million, based upon a \$2.69 valuation per share of our common stock. The exchange ratio and aggregate merger consideration are subject to adjustment, up or down, based upon the net liquid assets of Hudson at the effective time of the Merger. The transaction, which is expected to close in the second quarter of 2011, is subject to Hudson stockholder approval, regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions.

Business Environment

Market conditions and valuations for companies in the life science, China and other sectors in which RRCG is active, as well as general market conditions, can materially affect RRCG's financial performance. On May 6, 2010, the market experienced its "flash crash", with the Dow Jones Industrial Average declining 1,000 points, and from that day through the end of the third quarter, the equity markets generally performed poorly. Between May 6, 2010 and early September 2010, many of our clients and target companies have experienced volatility in their stock prices. When the stock markets are in a downturn or in a period of volatility, it is challenging to generate investment banking revenue from capital markets activity.

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments

We operate in two business segments, Capital Markets and Merchant Banking. The Capital Markets reportable segment includes our investment banking, sales and trading activities and research. The Capital Markets reportable segment is managed as a single operating segment that provides the following principal sources of revenue:

- investment banking fees, which are derived from corporate finance activities and strategic advisory services;
- realized and unrealized gains with respect to securities held for our own account;
- commissions on sales and trading activities;
- · conference fees; and
- other miscellaneous sources of revenues, such as interest.

Although we have multiple sources of revenue derived within Capital Markets, most of our revenue is derived from our investment banking services and consists of private placement, underwriting and strategic advisory fees earned upon the successful completion of financing or other types of corporate transactions, such as mergers, acquisitions and dispositions.

The Merchant Banking segment is primarily comprised of operating activities related to Aceras BioMedical. On May 12, 2008, we formed Aceras BioMedical, a joint venture through which we, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC, make principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, we formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of our principal-related businesses. We receive 50% of Aceras BioMedical's economic interest in all investments made.

(c) Narrative Description of Business

Our business consists of: (a) investment banking, which includes corporate finance and strategic advisory services; (b) sales and trading; (c) equity research; and (d) principal transactions and merchant banking.

Investment Banking

Our investment banking professionals focus on providing corporate finance and strategic advisory services to public and private companies. As of December 31, 2010, our investment banking group consisted of 19 senior managing directors and managing directors, who focus on originating, structuring and placing transactions. A significant majority of our investment banking revenues is earned from public companies with a market capitalization below \$500 million. We aim to provide these companies with capital origination services and strategic advice throughout their various stages of development.

Corporate Finance

We are corporate finance specialists and plan to continue to focus primarily on financing transactions. Our in-depth knowledge of a particular sector enables us to develop financing strategies, transaction structures and financing instruments that simultaneously address issuers' needs for capital and the investment community's need to balance risk and reward. We offer our clients a broad range of financing alternatives including private placements, PIPEs, RDs and underwritten public offerings.

- . Private Placements. These transactions involve sales of unregistered securities. In most cases the issuer is a private company, although public companies can undertake private placements as well. The securities sold may be common or preferred equity, debt, convertible debt, or derivatives, such as warrants. The debt could be secured or unsecured, senior, mezzanine or subordinated. Many of these transactions involve units, which include more than one class of securities.
- Private Investment in Public Equity, or "PIPE." In these transactions, a publicly-traded reporting company sells unregistered securities of a class, and/or convertible or exchangeable for a class, that is already publicly traded. Generally, the issuer is obligated to register the securities within a specified period after the transaction closes.
- Registered Direct Offerings, or "RD." These transactions are direct placements of securities that have been registered under a "shelf" registration statement and, therefore, are immediately tradable.
- Public Offerings. These transactions involve securities that have been registered and that are listed or traded on an exchange. The offering may constitute an "initial public offering" by a private company or a "follow-on offering" by an existing public company.

In 2010, we completed 116 financing transactions which raised in excess of \$3.0 billion. In a majority of these transactions we were either the lead investment bank or the only investment bank. In addition, we are a recognized industry leader in PIPE and RD financing transactions. From January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2010, we executed an aggregate of 394 PIPE and RD financing transactions which raised in excess of \$6.3 billion.

Strategic Advisory Services

We also provide strategic advisory services on a broad range of transactions including mergers, acquisitions and asset sales. We are involved at each stage of these transactions, from initial structuring to final execution.

Sales and Trading

As of December 31, 2010, our sales and trading unit included seven sales and sales trader personnel and two traders. They focus on executing trades for institutional investor clients in the United States and Europe. As of December 31, 2010, we were a market-maker for approximately 488 stocks.

Equity Research

As of December 31, 2010, our research department included 14 senior analysts: five who cover the life science sector; one who covers the metals/mining sector; one who covers the energy sector; four who cover the China sector; one who covers the technology sector; one who covers special situations; and one who covers community banks. These senior analysts are supported by seven associate analysts. As of December 31, 2010, the research department covered 238 companies.

Merchant Banking

The Merchant Banking segment is primarily comprised of operating activities related to Aceras BioMedical. On May 12, 2008, we formed Aceras BioMedical, a joint venture through which we, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC, make principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, we formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of our principal-related businesses. At December 31, 2010, our outstanding investment commitment to Aceras BioMedical to fund operations and the joint venture's principal investments in life science companies was \$12.1 million. We receive 50% of Aceras BioMedical's economic interest in all investments made.

Industry Leading Conferences

Our investment conferences are industry-leading events that bring together companies, institutional investors, business development executives and experts from our targeted sectors. The conferences are designed to facilitate interactions of companies in our targeted sectors with potential investors and strategic partners. The conferences also provide an opportunity to exchange ideas and build relationships and provide an opportunity for the participating companies and investors to build relationships.

In 2010, we sponsored three investment conferences; one in Beijing, one in New York and one in London. In 2011, we sponsored an investment conference in Shanghai, China in March and we expect to sponsor an investment conference in New York in September. These conferences emphasize "small-cap" and "mid-cap" companies and bring together company executives, scientists, industry specialists, venture capitalists and other institutional investors and feature company presentations, panel discussions and one-on-one meetings between company managements and investors. At its conference held in Beijing, China in March 2010, we had approximately 140 presenting companies and over 1,000 attendees. At the conference held in New York City in September 2010, there were approximately 500 presenting companies and over 4,000 attendees. At the conference held in London in May 2010, there were approximately 150 presenting companies and over 1,000 attendees. At the conference held in Shanghai, China in March 2011, we had approximately 170 presenting companies and over 1,800 attendees.

Our Business Strategy and Model

Our business strategy is to provide corporate finance, strategic advisory and related services to companies that have significant recurring capital needs due to their growth and development strategies. Currently, we focus primarily on four sectors:

- life sciences, including biotechnology, medical device, pharmaceutical and healthcare services companies;
- . metals and mining, including steel (manufacturing and distribution) and natural resource exploration companies;
- energy, including oil and gas and alternative energy companies; and
- . China based companies that are, or desire to become, public in the United States.

Historically, we have been one of the leaders in the PIPE and RD transaction markets, particularly for biotechnology and China companies. More recently, we have expanded our product offerings to include underwritten public offerings and have created the Global Capital Markets (GCM Group) to focus on these types of financing transactions.

PIPE and RD Financing Transactions

PIPE and RD financing transactions provide public companies with effective and viable alternatives to raising capital through public follow-on offerings. In a PIPE, a public reporting company sells unregistered securities to investors in a private placement transaction and obligates itself to file, and process to effectiveness, a registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") covering the resale of the securities by the investors within a specified period after the financing closes. The investors cannot sell the securities until the registration statement becomes effective, or an exemption from registration is available for the resale of the securities. In a RD, a public reporting company sells directly to investors securities that are covered by what is commonly referred to as a "shelf" registration statement (a registration statement that was previously declared effective by the SEC) in a financing transaction commonly referred to as a "shelf takedown." Since these securities are issued pursuant to an effective registration statement, the investors can immediately resell them after the completion of the transaction. We believe that both PIPE and RD financing transactions offer the advantages of greater speed, lower cost and more efficient execution over public follow-on offerings.

PIPE and RD financing transactions, as alternatives to public follow-on offerings, have grown significantly in recent years. Sagient Research Systems, the leading provider of research, data, and analytics covering PIPE and RD financing transactions, and a widely quoted and used industry resource, publishes "PlacementTracker," which aggregates PIPE and RD financing transactions together for the purposes of its league tables and other statistical data.

We completed our first PIPE and RD financing transactions in 2002 and since then have become a leader in this space. The table below sets forth the number of PIPE and RD transactions completed by us and the dollars raised by us in those transactions from 2003 to 2010 as well as the total industry-wide number of transactions and dollars raised during these periods. The statistical data in the table below is derived from data published by PlacementTracker.

	Rodman	ı & Renshaw	Indust	ry-Wide
Period	Number of Transactions	Dollars Raised (in millions)	Number of Transactions	Dollars Raised (in millions)
2003	31	>\$ 400	1,456	>\$ 19,100
2004	38	>\$ 590	2,001	>\$ 21,600
2005	29	>\$ 460	2,171	>\$ 28,000
2006	45	>\$ 850	1,622	>\$.31,200
2007	53	>\$ 930	1,623	>\$ 86,600
2008	44	>\$ 580	1,153	>\$ 123,800
2009	77	>\$1,233	1,019	>\$ 38,400
2010	77	>\$1,221	1,151	>\$ 39,303

According to PlacementTracker, in each of calendar years 2003, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we were the leading investment bank in terms of the aggregate number of PIPE and RD financing transactions completed, and in calendar year 2004 we were the number two investment bank in terms of the aggregate number of PIPE and RD financing transactions completed.

We believe there is a significant opportunity for continued growth in this space given issuers' continuing desire to identify and pursue faster and less costly financing alternatives to traditional follow-on public offerings and institutional investors' continuing interest in participating in these financing transactions.

Competitive Strengths

Sector Focus

We believe that our focus on a limited number of large sectors with recurring capital needs is a competitive advantage. This focus manifests itself in the form of an integrated investment banking platform that includes specialists in the areas of corporate finance, strategic advisory services, research and trading and institutional sales. We believe this specialization produces a combination of investment banking and technical expertise, allowing us to better understand and service the strategic and financing needs of our clients and deliver differentiated advice that our clients require and appreciate when addressing complex financing issues and making important strategic decisions.

Experienced Professionals with Deep Knowledge and Broad Skills

We have created an entrepreneurial, performance-oriented corporate culture that attracts professionals who share a reputation for sector expertise, strong execution skills and a history of successful transactions. We are led by a team of professionals with extensive track records of success in arranging and executing various types of financing transactions.

Strong Client Relationships

We emphasize developing and nurturing long-term relationships with both issuers and investors, including hedge funds, venture capital funds and private equity funds. This has expanded our distribution and placement capabilities, enabling us to raise significant amounts of capital for our issuer clients. We strive to build long-term relationships with our issuer clients by providing services appropriate to each stage of a company's development. We provide our clients with frequent and consistent interaction with our senior professionals, who are actively involved in all stages of our client engagements. We believe that the high levels of expertise and client trust we have developed have been significant factors contributing to our growth and have enabled us to generate significant repeat business. In 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, approximately 44%, 41%, 66%, 38%, 34% and 44%, respectively, of our investment banking transactions were executed with repeat clients.

Unleveraged Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2010, we had total assets of \$81.1 million and stockholders' equity of \$52.3 million. Most importantly, we are debt-free.

Competition

All aspects of our business are intensely competitive. Our competitors are other investment banks, brokerage firms, merchant banks and financial advisory firms. We consider our primary competitors to include the following firms:

Canaccord Adams, Inc. Leerink Swann & Co.

Cowen Group, Inc Maxim Group

Jefferies Group, Inc. Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.

JMP Group, Inc Piper Jaffray Companies.

Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services, Inc. Roth Capital Partners, LLC

Lazard Ltd. Stifel Financial Corp.

In addition, if we continue to expand into new sectors, we are likely to face competition from other firms.

We compete on a national, regional and local level as well as on product and business-line bases. Some of our competitors have teams that specifically focus on the same sectors, and some of them specialize in the same types of financing transactions that we specialize in – namely, private placements, PIPEs, RDs, IPOs and follow-on public offerings. We do not believe that our competitors have the same level of expertise as we do with PIPE and RD financing transactions or in our target sectors. Many of our competitors, however, have substantially greater capital and resources than we do and offer a broader range of financial products. We believe that the principal factors affecting competition in our business include client relationships, reputation, quality and price of our products and services, market focus and the experience of our professionals.

A number of large commercial banks have established or acquired broker-dealers or have merged with other financial institutions. Many of these firms have the ability to offer a broader range of products and services than we offer, including loans, deposit accounts, insurance and alternative investment strategies. Many of these firms also have more extensive investment banking services, which may enhance their competitive position. They also have the ability to support investment banking and securities products with commercial banking, insurance and other financial services revenue in an effort to gain market share, which could result in pricing pressure in our business. This trend toward consolidation and convergence has also significantly increased the capital base and geographic reach of our competitors.

In the investment banking industry, competition for the recruitment and retention of qualified professionals is also intense. Our ability to continue to compete effectively in our business will depend upon our continued ability to retain and motivate our existing professionals and attract new professionals.

Government Regulation

Our business, as well as the financial services industry generally, is subject to extensive regulation in the United States and elsewhere. As a matter of public policy, regulatory bodies in the United States and the rest of the world are charged with safeguarding the integrity of the securities and other financial markets and with protecting the interests of participants in those markets. In the United States, the SEC is the federal agency responsible for the administration of the federal securities laws. R&R, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is registered as a broker-dealer with the SEC and FINRA and in all 50 states. Accordingly, R&R is subject to regulation and oversight by the SEC and FINRA, a self-regulatory organization, which is itself subject to oversight by the SEC and which adopts and enforces rules governing the conduct, and examines the activities, of its member firms. State securities regulators also have regulatory or oversight authority over R&R. Our business may also be subject to regulation by foreign governmental and regulatory bodies and self-regulatory authorities in other countries.

Broker-dealers are subject to regulations that cover all aspects of the securities business, including sales methods, trade practices among broker-dealers, use and safekeeping of customers' funds and securities, capital structure, record-keeping, the financing of customers' purchases and the conduct and qualifications of directors, officers and employees. In particular, as a registered broker-dealer and member of various self-regulatory organizations, R&R is subject to the SEC's uniform net capital rule, Rule 15c3-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), which specifies the minimum level of net capital a broker-dealer must maintain and also requires that a significant part of its assets be kept in relatively liquid form. The SEC and various self-regulatory organizations impose rules that require notification when net capital falls below certain predefined criteria, limit the ratio of subordinated debt to equity in the regulatory capital composition of a broker-dealer and constrain the ability of a broker-dealer to expand its business under certain circumstances. Additionally, the SEC's uniform net capital rule imposes certain requirements that may have the effect of prohibiting a broker-dealer from distributing or withdrawing capital and requiring prior notice to the SEC for certain withdrawals of capital. The SEC has adopted rule amendments that establish alternative net capital requirements for broker-dealers that are part of a consolidated supervised entity. As a condition to its use of the alternative method, a broker-dealer's ultimate holding company and affiliates (referred to collectively as a "consolidated supervised entity") must consent to group-wide supervision and examination by the SEC. If we elect to become subject to the SEC's group-wide supervision, we will be required to report to the SEC computations of our capital adequacy.

The research areas of investment banks have been and remain the subject of increased regulatory scrutiny. In 2002 and 2003, acting in part pursuant to a mandate contained in Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("SOX"), the SEC, the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), Nasdaq and FINRA adopted rules imposing heightened restrictions on the interaction between equity research analysts and investment banking personnel at member securities firms. In addition, in 2003 and 2004, a number of securities firms in the United States reached a settlement with certain federal and state securities regulators and self-regulatory organizations to resolve investigations into their equity research analysts' alleged conflicts of interest. Under this settlement, to which we were not a party, the firms have been subject to certain restrictions and undertakings. In addition, the settlement imposes restrictions on the interaction between research and investment banking departments, and these securities firms are required to fund the provision of independent research to their customers. In connection with the research settlement, the firms also subscribed to a voluntary initiative imposing restrictions on the allocation of shares in public offerings to executives and directors of public companies. The SEC has proposed amendments to Regulation M that would further affect the manner in which securities are distributed and allocated in registered public offerings, and FINRA has proposed similar rulemaking in this area. We cannot fully predict the practical effect that such restrictions or measures will have on our business. Furthermore, the SEC, the NYSE, Nasdaq and FINRA may, in the future, adopt additional and more stringent rules with respect to offering procedures and the management of conflicts of interest in the future.

The effort to combat money laundering and terrorist financing is a priority in government policy with respect to financial institutions. The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 contains anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and mandates the implementation of various regulations applicable to broker-dealers and other financial services companies, including standards for verifying client identification at account opening, and obligations to monitor client transactions and report suspicious activities. Through these and other provisions, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 seeks to promote the identification of parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering. Anti-money laundering laws outside the United States contain some similar provisions. The obligation of financial institutions, including us, to identify their customers, watch for and report suspicious transactions, respond to requests for information by regulatory authorities and law enforcement agencies, and share information with other financial institutions, has required the implementation and maintenance of internal practices, procedures and controls which have increased, and may continue to increase, our costs, and any failure with respect to our programs in this area could subject us to serious regulatory consequences, including substantial fines and, potentially, other liabilities.

Certain of our businesses are subject to compliance with laws and regulations of the United States, state governments, foreign governments and their respective agencies and/or various self-regulatory organizations or exchanges relating to the privacy of client information, and any failure to comply with these regulations could expose us to liability and/or reputational damage.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act ("Dodd-Frank Act"), the financial reform legislation that was passed in July 2010, establishes the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection to regulate the offering and provision of consumer financial products or services under federal law. We are uncertain whether this Bureau will issue any rules or regulations that will affect our business. Such rules and regulations could have a material adverse effect upon us.

Additional legislation, changes in rules promulgated by the SEC and self-regulatory organizations or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules, either in the United States or elsewhere, may directly affect the mode of our operation and profitability.

The United States and foreign government agencies and self-regulatory organizations, as well as state securities commissions in the United States, are empowered to conduct administrative proceedings that can result in censure, fine, the issuance of cease-and-desist orders or the suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer or its directors, officers or employees.

Since March 2004, we have received inquiries, subpoenas and requests for production of documents from the SEC, FINRA and the Attorney General of the State of New York ("AG") with respect to individual PIPE transactions in which we acted as placement agent. We have responded to each such inquiry, subpoena and request, and, to our best knowledge, our responses have been to the satisfaction of the inquiring party. We have never been advised by the SEC, FINRA or the AG that we are, or have been, a target in connection with any such inquiry or investigation in connection with our PIPE business, and we have no reason to believe that we are currently a target in connection with any such inquiry or investigation. We believe that these inquiries and investigations are consistent with the general regulatory scrutiny that PIPE transactions have been the subject of during this period.

During 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we have received ongoing inquiries from FINRA relating to our participation in resale registration offerings that register securities placed in private placement financing transactions in which we acted as placement agent. The inquiries have focused on whether the offerings contemplated by such resale registration statements are subject to the filing requirements set forth in Rule 5110 of FINRA Conduct Rules ("Rule 5110") and FINRA Notice to Members 88-101 and related Regulation M matters. A Rule 5110 filing seeks approval from FINRA as to the fairness of the compensation received, or to be received, by a member in a financing transaction covered by the rule. The rule generally covers a member that is "participating" in a public offering, the definition of which is currently the subject of industry discussion and debate. We have responded to each such inquiry, and to our best knowledge, such responses have been to the satisfaction of the inquiring party. We expect that FINRA may seek further information from us. We have never been advised by FINRA that we are, or were, a target in connection with any inquiry or investigation relating to Rule 5110.

Risk Management and Compliance

Risk is an inherent part of our business. Global markets, by their nature, are prone to uncertainty and expose participants to a variety of risks. The principal risks we face are market, liquidity, legal, reputation and operational risks. We consider risk management to be of paramount importance in our day-to-day operations. Consequently, we devote significant resources, including investments in personnel and technology, to the measurement, analysis and management of risk. While risk cannot be eliminated, we seek to mitigate it through a strong internal control environment, with multiple overlapping and reinforcing elements. We developed policies and procedures to identify, measure and monitor the risks involved in our sales and trading, principal transactions and investment banking activities. We apply sound practical judgment before transactions occur to ensure appropriate risk mitigation is in place. We accomplish this objective by allocating the use of capital to each of our business units, establishing trading limits and setting credit limits for individual counterparties.

The challenge is balancing risk versus return. Our objective is to achieve adequate returns from each of our business units commensurate with the risks inherent in those units. Nonetheless, the effectiveness of our approach to managing risks can never be completely assured. For example, unexpected large or rapid movements or disruptions in one or more markets or other unforeseen developments could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. The consequences of these developments can include losses due to adverse changes in the value of our portfolio of securities and warrants and increases in our credit exposure to customers and trading counterparties and general systemic risk.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 131 full-time employees, substantially all of which are based in our principal offices in New York City. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreements and we have not had any work stoppages. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive office is located at 1251 Avenue of Americas, 20th Floor, New York, New York 10020, and our telephone number is (212) 356-0500. We also have an office in Houston, Texas. Our corporate website address is www.rodm.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Report and you should not consider information contained on, or accessible through, our website as part of this Report.

(d) Financial Information About Geographic Areas

In 2010, 2009 and 2008, we derived certain revenues from business outside of the United States; however, such revenues were not material. Financial information concerning our operations is reported in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

(e) Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments are available on the SEC's internet website at www.sec.gov. The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 Fifth Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. As noted above, the SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers such as us that file electronically with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following are certain risk factors that could affect our business, financial position and results of operations. These risk factors should be considered in connection with evaluating the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K because these factors could cause the actual results and conditions to differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Before you buy our common stock or other securities, you should know that making such an investment involves risks, including the risks described below. The risks that have been highlighted below are not necessarily the only risks of our business. If any of the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected. In that case, the trading price of our common stock or other securities could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Certain risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements include the following:

Risks Related to Our Business

We have limited cash and cash equivalents and rely on cash flow from operations to operate our business.

At December 31, 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$14.8 million. Our capital requirements have been and will continue to be significant. Historically, we have relied upon cash flow from operations to fund our working capital needs. In light of current market and economic conditions it is difficult, if not impossible, to predict the timing or likelihood of generating revenues. In the event that we do not generate adequate cash flow from operations to fund our working capital needs we will need to raise working capital through a debt or equity financing, if available, or curtail operations.

Limitations on our access to capital could impair our ability to expand our businesses.

Liquidity, or ready access to funds, is essential to financial services firms, including ours. R&R, our broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject to the net capital requirements of the SEC, FINRA and various self-regulatory organizations of which it is a member. These requirements typically specify the minimum level of net capital a broker-dealer must maintain and also mandate that a significant part of its assets be kept in relatively liquid form. Any failure to comply with these net capital requirements could impair our ability to expand our business. Furthermore, there are laws that authorize regulatory bodies to block or reduce R&R's ability to distribute funds to us. As a result, regulatory actions could impede our access to funds that we need to make payments on obligations or dividend payments. In addition, because we hold equity interests in our subsidiaries, our rights as an equity holder to the assets of these subsidiaries may not materialize, if at all, until the claims of the creditors of these subsidiaries are satisfied.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from the life science sector, primarily from biotechnology companies. Adverse developments or a decline in investor interest in this sector could harm our business.

In 2010, 2009, and 2008, 31%, 53%, and 59%, respectively, of our revenues were derived from the life science sector. Although this percentage may decrease over time, we anticipate that the life science sector (primarily biotechnology companies) will continue to account for a significant portion of our revenues in the foreseeable future. The life science sector is known for its volatility due to a number of factors including the following:

- . many companies in this sector rely on a single product or class of products;
- . the sector is highly regulated;
- a company's success and viability depends on the results of clinical trials, which are unpredictable;
- . technological developments;
- . disposition of patent applications;
- . international respect of patents;
- . product recalls;
- general economic conditions and political developments;
- . global competition; and
- . availability of insurance coverage.

Despite our expansion into other sectors, our revenue and net profits will continue to be subject to the volatility of the life science sector, which could have a detrimental impact on our results of operations.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from China based companies which could be adversely affected by changes in the political and economic policies of the government of the Peoples Republic of China (PRC).

In 2010, 2009, and 2008, 28%, 24%, and 8%, respectively, of our revenues were derived from the China sector. Our China based revenue is principally derived from companies that are listed on, or seek listing on, a U.S. exchange. Under the current government leadership, the government of the PRC has been pursuing economic reform policies that encourage private economic activity, greater economic decentralization and globalization. There is no assurance, however, that the government of the PRC will continue to pursue these policies, or that it will not significantly alter these policies from time to time, with or without notice. Further, the China region and markets may experience volatility, political turmoil, uncertainty or difficult economic or market conditions that differ from those in the U.S. Any of these changes could negatively impact our current business and our expansion plans within the China region which could have a negative impact on our revenues and results of operations.

We may experience difficulties, unexpected costs and delays in integrating Hudson's businesses, business model and culture and the combined company may not realize synergies, efficiencies or cost savings from the Merger.

Our businesses and Hudson's businesses have operated and, until the Merger is completed, will continue to operate, independently. The success of the combined company following the completion of the Merger may depend in large part on the ability to integrate the two companies' businesses, business models and cultures. In particular, investment banking businesses depend to a large degree on the efforts and performance of individual employees whose efforts and performance may be affected by any difficulties in the integration of the businesses. In the process of integrating Hudson, we may experience difficulties, unanticipated costs and delays. The challenges involved in the integration may include:

- the necessity of coordinating geographically disparate organizations and addressing possible differences in corporate and regional cultures and management philosophies;
- managing the combined company at geographically separate locations that employ a significant number of employees;
- retaining personnel from different companies and integrating them into a new business culture while maintaining their focus on providing consistent, high-quality client service;
- integrating information technology systems and resources;

- integrating accounting systems and adjusting internal controls to cover Hudson's operations;
- unforeseen expenses or delays associated with the transaction;
- performance shortfalls at one or both of the companies as a result of the diversion of management's attention to the transaction; and
- meeting the expectations of clients with respect to the integration.

The integration of certain operations, in particular the two companies' research and brokerage businesses, following the transaction will take time and will require the dedication of significant management resources, which may temporarily distract management's attention from the ongoing businesses of the combined company. Employee uncertainty and lack of focus during the integration process may also disrupt the businesses of the combined company.

It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key employees, diversion of each company's management's attention, the disruption or interruption of, or the loss of momentum in, each company's ongoing business or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies, any of which could adversely affect the combined company's ability to maintain relationships with clients and employees or the ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of the transaction, or could reduce the combined company's earnings or otherwise adversely affect the business and financial results of the combined company. In addition, the integration process may strain the combined company's financial and managerial controls and reporting systems and procedures. This may result in the diversion of management and financial resources from the combined company's core business objectives.

Even if we are able to integrate the Hudson businesses and operations successfully, there can be no assurance that this integration will result in any synergies, efficiencies or cost savings or that any of these benefits will be achieved within a specific time frame. Any of these factors could adversely affect the combined company's business and results of operations.

If we are unable to integrate Hudson personnel successfully or retain key Hudson personnel after the Merger is completed, the combined company's business may suffer.

Our ability to obtain and successfully execute the combined businesses after the Merger depends in part upon the personal reputation, judgment, business generation capabilities and project execution skills of Hudson's senior professionals. Any management disruption or difficulties in integrating Hudson's professionals could result in a loss of clients and customers or revenues from clients and customers and could significantly affect the combined company's business and results of operations.

The success of the Merger will depend in part on our ability to retain the talents and dedication of the professionals currently employed by Hudson. It is possible that these employees might decide not to remain employed by us after the Merger is completed. If key employees terminate their employment, or insufficient numbers of employees are retained to maintain effective operations, the combined company's business activities might be adversely affected, management's attention might be diverted from successfully integrating Hudson's operations to hiring suitable replacements, and the combined company's business might suffer. In addition, we might not be able to locate suitable replacements for any key employees that leave either company or offer employment to potential replacements on reasonable terms.

Integration of Hudson's operations with our operations may impair our ability to achieve the expected benefits of the Merger.

Following completion of the Merger, we expect to make changes to certain aspects of our operations to integrate Hudson's operations with our operations. In addition, we expect that the Merger could affect each of the companies' existing client relationships or its ability to enter into new client relationships. Any changes that we make to operations could disrupt the businesses and client relationships and could materially and adversely affect our ability to achieve the expected benefits of the transaction.

Our growth may depend on our ability to complete acquisitions and integrate operations of acquired businesses and personnel.

We cannot assure you that any of the transactions that we have already completed or that we may complete in the future will be successful and we may not realize the anticipated benefits of these transactions. In fact, these transactions may cause margin fluctuation or otherwise have a material adverse effect upon our operating results.

Achieving the benefits of acquisitions and new hiring depends on the timely, efficient and successful execution of a number of post-transaction events, including, in the case of acquisitions, integrating the acquired business, personnel, systems and operations into our business platform, operations and reporting and information systems. In the case of new hires and joint ventures, the post-transaction challenges include integrating the new people into our corporate culture and managing them properly. Our ability to integrate new businesses and new hires may be adversely affected by many factors, including the size of the business acquired, the number of and the personality of the people involved and the allocation of our limited management resources among various integration efforts. Integration and management issues may also require a disproportionate amount of our management's time and attention and distract our management from running our historical businesses.

In connection with future acquisitions, we may decide to consolidate the operations of any acquired business with our existing operations or make other changes with respect to the acquired business, which could result in special charges or other expenses. Our results of operations also may be adversely affected by expenses we incur in making acquisitions and hiring new personnel. For example, in the case of acquisitions, our results of operations will be impacted by expenses, including legal and accounting fees, incurred in connection with the transaction, amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets with definite lives and by additional depreciation expense attributable to acquired assets. Any of the businesses we acquire may also have liabilities or adverse operating issues, including some that we fail to discover before the acquisition, and our indemnity for such liabilities may be limited. Our ability to make any future acquisitions may depend upon obtaining additional financing. We may not be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms or at all. To the extent that we seek to acquire other businesses in exchange for our common stock, fluctuations in our stock price could have a material adverse effect on our ability to complete acquisitions.

A principal investing platform, in which we will invest our own capital, will expose us to a significant risk of capital loss.

Principal investing involves numerous risks, including illiquidity, loss of invested capital and revaluation. In the past, we have used a portion of our own capital in a variety of principal investment activities, including purchasing "shell" companies to be used in connection with future financing transactions. From time to time we also purchase securities offered in financing transactions for which we are acting as placement agent. We also hold a portfolio of equity securities, including stock and warrants that we received as part of our compensation in connection with investment banking assignments. As of December 31, 2010 we had an outstanding investment commitment of \$12.1 million to Aceras BioMedical, which will use those funds to purchase promising compounds or equity securities in early stage companies in the life science and/or biotechnology sectors and its operating budget. Other principal investing activities may involve purchasing securities in other high-risk financings of early-stage, pre-public, or distressed companies. These securities are likely to be restricted as to resale and may in any event, be highly illiquid. For example, in the case of investments in marketable securities, principal investments could be significant relative to the overall capitalization of the company in which we invest. Resale of a significant amount of these securities might adversely affect their market and/or sales price. Moreover, the companies in which we invest may rely on new or developing technologies or novel business models or concentrate on markets which have not yet developed and which may never develop sufficiently to support successful operations. Even if we make an appropriate investment decision based on the intrinsic value of an enterprise, we cannot assure you that general market conditions will not cause the market value of our investments to decline. For example, an increase in interest rates, currency fluctuations, a general decline in the stock markets, or other market conditions adverse to companies of the type in which we may invest could result in a decline in the value of our investments or a total loss of our investment. This could materially and adversely impact our financial results and the price of our common stock.

We may also commit our own capital to facilitate client sales and trading activities. The number and size of these transactions may adversely affect our results of operations. To the extent that we have long positions in any of those markets, a downturn in the value of those assets or in those markets could result in losses. Conversely, to the extent that we have short positions in any of those markets an upturn in those markets could expose us to potentially large losses as we attempt to cover our short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market. These long and short positions and the movement of the market relative to these positions could further contribute to the fluctuations in our revenues and earnings, which, in turn, could contribute to volatility in the price of our common stock.

Our client base and the number of products we offer are limited. Our rate of growth will be impaired unless we expand our client base and increase our investment banking revenues.

We derive most of our revenues from investment banking engagements, including placement agent and underwriting fees and strategic advisory fees, which also have higher profit margins than our other categories of revenue. For the years 2010, 2009, and 2008, investment banking transactions accounted for 91%, 68%, and 84%, respectively, of our revenues excluding principal transactions.

Our future growth still largely depends on our ability to generate significant placement agent and underwriting fees. To do so, we must: (i) continue to build up our expertise in the life sciences, metals/mining, energy and China sectors and consider expansion into new sectors; (ii) increase the volume of corporate finance transactions in which we act as sole or lead manager; and (iii) actively solicit engagements for larger transactions. Significant factors affecting this strategy include our relatively small size and competition from larger investment banks. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete effectively for new investment banking engagements. If we are unable to increase our investment banking revenue, our rate of growth will be adversely affected, which may cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our future success depends on our ability to continue to expand our investment banking services into sectors of the economy other than biotechnology.

For the years 2010, 2009, and 2008, investment banking revenues from companies in sectors other than biotechnology and life science were 69%, 47%, and 41%, respectively, of our total investment banking revenues. Since we did not have any particular expertise in sectors other than biotechnology prior to the second quarter of 2008, we relied, in part, on our relationships with institutional investors and private equity funds to introduce us to companies that need capital and on our own ability to identify opportunities to which we can apply our corporate finance know-how. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to receive referrals from institutional investor sources or that our recent expansion into the metals/mining and energy sectors will result in additional investment banking revenues.

Our revenue and profits are highly volatile, which may make it difficult for us to achieve steady earnings growth on a quarterly basis and may cause the price of our common stock to decline. In addition, the investment banking sector can be highly volatile, which could adversely impact our revenues and profits.

We have experienced, and expect to experience in the future, significant variations from period-to-period in our revenues and results of operations. These variations may be attributed in part to the fact that our investment banking revenues, which represent the largest portion of our revenues, are typically earned when the financing or merger or acquisition transaction is consummated, the timing of which is uncertain and largely beyond our control. If a transaction fails to close, we will earn little or no revenue despite the fact that we may have devoted considerable resources to, and incurred significant out-of-pocket expenses in connection with, the transaction. As a result, our business depends a great deal on market conditions as well as the decisions and actions of our clients and interested third parties. For example, a client could delay or terminate financing transactions because of a failure to agree upon final terms with the counterparty, failure to obtain necessary regulatory consents or board or stockholder approvals, adverse market conditions or because its business is experiencing unexpected operating or financial problems. In addition, many companies seeking a financing simultaneously explore a merger or sale option. Our investment banking revenues would be adversely affected if companies for which we are acting as placement agent or underwriter were sold and we were not also engaged as a strategic advisor.

Market conditions and valuations for companies in the life science, metals/mining and energy sectors, as well as general market conditions, can materially affect our financial performance. The nature of our revenue generation, including the size of transactions, the timing of transaction closings and the sectors in which those transactions occur, make our future performance difficult to predict and potentially highly variable. Revenues for many of the services we provide are earned only upon the successful completion of a transaction. Accordingly, revenues and net income in any period may not be indicative of full-year results or the results of any other period and may vary significantly from year-to-year and quarter-to-quarter depending on whether and when transactions are completed and the number, size and type of transactions completed. In particular, recent volatility in the capital markets may lead to disruptions that delay or eliminate revenue opportunities.

Our results may be adversely affected in future periods by the volatility of financial instruments in our portfolio.

We may engage in large block trades in a single security or maintain large position concentrations in a single security or warrant, securities or warrants of a single issuer, or securities or warrants of issuers engaged in a specific industry. Any downward price movement in these securities or warrants could result in a reduction of our revenues and profits in the future.

Our corporate finance and strategic advisory engagements are singular in nature and do not generally provide for subsequent engagements.

Our investment banking engagements are usually transaction specific as opposed to long-term engagements. As such, we must continually seek new engagements even from companies that have engaged us in the past. For this reason, we believe it is important to nurture strong relationships with our clients. Although we have been successful in securing repeat engagements from clients in the past, we cannot assure you that this trend will continue. As a result, high activity levels in any period are not necessarily indicative of continued high levels of activity in any subsequent period. If we are unable to generate a substantial number of new engagements that generate fees from new or existing clients, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We depend on the services of a limited number of key executives and the loss of their services would have a material adverse effect on us.

We depend on the efforts and reputations of Michael Vasinkevich, our Vice Chairman, Edward Rubin, our Chief Executive Officer and President, and John J. Borer III, our Head of Investment Banking. Their reputations and relationships with clients and potential clients are critical elements in expanding our business, and we believe our historical and future performance is strongly correlated to their involvement to date and their continued involvement in our operations. The loss or reduction of the services of any of Messrs. Vasinkevich, Rubin and/or Borer, due to death, disability, termination of employment or regulatory restriction, could have a material adverse effect on our operations, including our ability to attract new company clients and to raise capital from institutional investors.

We currently have at-will employment agreements with each of Messrs. Vasinkevich, Rubin, and Borer. We cannot assure you that one or more of Messrs. Vasinkevich, Rubin, and Borer will not resign, join a competitor or form a competing company or that the restrictive covenants in their employment agreements are enforceable.

The investment banking industry is highly competitive. If we fail to address the challenges posed by this competition, we could lose our leading position in these areas, causing our operating results to suffer.

The investment banking industry is intensely competitive, particularly in those areas in which we specialize (i.e., biotechnology and life science, metals/mining and energy, and PIPE and RD transactions), and we expect it to remain so for the foreseeable future. We have experienced intense price competition in our various businesses. Pricing and other competitive pressures in investment banking, including the trends toward multiple book runners, co-managers and multiple financial advisors handling transactions, could adversely affect our revenues, even as the size and number of our investment banking transactions may increase. Many of our competitors are larger, have greater financial and other resources and longer operating histories than we have, giving them a significant competitive advantage. We consider our principal competitors to include Canaccord Adams, Inc., Cowen Group, Inc, Jefferies Group, Inc., JMP Group, Inc, Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services, Inc., Lazard Ltd., Leerink Swann & Co., Maxim Group, Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., Piper Jaffray Companies, Roth Capital Partners, LLC and Stifel Corp. If we expand our business into new sectors and new business lines, we will face competition from other firms as well. We compete on the basis of a number of factors, including the scope and quality of services, price, market focus and industry knowledge, client relationships and reputation. Larger firms provide a broader range of investment banking services to their clients than we do. If we do not address these competitive factors successfully, we may not be able to execute our strategy or even maintain our existing market share. In either case, our operating results would suffer as would the price of our common stock.

We will likely face competition from larger investment banking firms. In order to compete with them, we may have to increase our operating expenses significantly and/or make larger commitments of capital in our trading and underwriting business. This increases the potential for capital loss, which could adversely impact our operating results.

We are a relatively small investment bank. Historically we have tried to avoid competing with larger investment banks. However, we expect this to change as we pursue investment banking opportunities with larger companies and engagements for larger transactions. Larger investment banks not only offer a broader range of products and services than we do, they also have significantly greater financial and marketing resources than we do, greater name recognition, more senior professionals to serve their clients' needs, greater global reach and may have more established relationships with clients than we have. Thus, they are better able to respond to changes in the investment banking industry, compete for skilled professionals, finance acquisitions, fund internal growth and compete for market share.

In addition, financial services firms have begun to make larger and more frequent commitments of capital in many of their activities. In order to win business, they are increasingly committing to purchase large blocks of stock from publicly traded issuers or significant stockholders, instead of the more traditional marketed underwriting process in which marketing is typically completed before an investment bank commits to purchase securities for resale. They are willing to provide debt financing out of internal funds, often giving them a significant competitive advantage. Because we do not have the resources to match these investment banking firms, we may be unable to compete as effectively for larger clients and larger transactions. In that case, we may not be able to execute that part of our strategy, which could have an adverse impact on our operations and financial condition.

Our ability to retain our senior professionals and recruit additional professionals is critical to our strategy and our failure to do so may adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our ability to obtain and successfully execute the transactions that generate a significant portion of our revenues depends upon the reputation, judgment, business generation capabilities and project execution skills of our senior professionals. The reputations of our senior professionals and their relationships with our clients are a critical element in obtaining and executing client engagements. Accordingly, retaining these particular employees is critical to our future success and growth. In addition, we may add investment bankers and other financial professionals. However, turnover in the investment banking industry is high and we encounter intense competition for qualified employees from other companies in the investment banking industry as well as from businesses outside the investment banking industry, such as hedge funds and private equity funds. We have experienced departures of investment banking and other professionals in the past and losses of key employees may occur in the future. As a result of such departures, we may not be able to retain valuable relationships and some of our clients could choose to use the services of a competitor instead of our services. We cannot assure you that our efforts to recruit and retain the required personnel will be successful as the market for qualified financial professionals is extremely competitive. Similarly, we cannot assure you that our compensation arrangements and non-competition and non-solicitation agreements with our key employees are broad or effective enough to deter or prevent employees from resigning, joining or forming competitors or soliciting our clients. Further, we cannot assure you that we could successfully enforce our rights under those agreements. If we are unable to retain our senior professionals and/or recruit additional professionals, our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition will be adversely affected.

Our compensation policy may adversely affect our ability to recruit, retain and motivate our senior managing directors and other key employees, which in turn could adversely affect our ability to compete effectively and to grow our business.

The target for our total compensation and benefits expense is currently 60% of total consolidated revenues less non-cash principal transactions. This target includes equity, equity-based incentives, amortization of forgivable loans and other non-cash employee benefits. Our reliance on equity and equity-based incentives for a significant portion of the compensation package we pay to our senior executives may not be effective, especially if the market price of our common stock declines. This compensation policy could adversely impact the overall compensation our key employees, including our senior executive officers and managing directors, may receive. Our senior executives and managing directors may receive less compensation under this formula than they otherwise would receive at other firms, which would make it more difficult for us to retain our key employees, including our senior executives and managing directors, and attract new key employees.

If we are unable to manage our growth successfully, we may not be able to sustain profitability. Continued growth may place significant demands on our operational, administrative and financial resources.

Our growth has caused, and if it continues, will continue to cause, significant demands on our operational, administrative and financial infrastructure and increase our expenses. If we do not effectively manage our growth, the quality of our services could suffer, which would adversely affect our operating results and our reputation. If we continue to grow, we will have to hire, train and manage a larger work force and improve our financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures. These systems enhancements and improvements will require significant capital expenditures and allocation of valuable management resources. If the improvements are not implemented successfully, our ability to manage our growth will be impaired and we may incur significant additional expenditures to address these issues, further impairing our financial condition and profitability. We cannot assure you that we will be able to manage growth effectively and any failure to do so could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues and control expenses.

Our risk management policies and procedures may leave us exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks.

Our risk management strategies and techniques may not be fully effective in mitigating our risk exposure in all market environments or against all types of risk. We are exposed to the risk that third parties that owe us money, securities or other assets will not perform their obligations. These parties may default on their obligations to us due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, operational failure, and breach of contract or other reasons. We are also subject to the risk that our rights against third parties may not be enforceable in all circumstances, and, as a result, default risks may arise from events or circumstances that are difficult to detect, foresee or reasonably guard against. In addition, concerns about, or a default by, one institution could lead to significant liquidity problems, losses or defaults by other institutions, which in turn could adversely affect us. If any of the variety of processes and strategies we utilize to manage our exposure to various types of risk are not effective, we may incur losses.

Our operations and infrastructure and those of the service providers upon which we rely may malfunction or fail.

We outsource various aspects of our technology infrastructure, including data centers, disaster recovery systems, and wide area networks, as well as most trading applications. We depend on our technology providers to manage and monitor those functions. A disruption of any of the outsourced services would be out of our control and could negatively impact our business. We have experienced disruptions on occasion, none of which has been material to our operations or results. However, we cannot assure you that future disruptions with these providers will not occur or that their impact would not be material.

We also face the risk of operational failure or termination of relations with any of the clearing agents, exchanges, clearing houses or other financial intermediaries we use to facilitate our securities transactions. Any such failure or termination could adversely affect our ability to effect transactions and to manage our exposure to risk.

In addition, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure, including electrical, communications, transportation and other services, that support our businesses and the area in which we are located. This may affect, among other things, our financial, accounting or other data processing systems. Nearly all of our employees work in close proximity to each other. Although we have a formal disaster recovery plan in place, if a disruption occurs and our employees are unable to communicate with or travel to other locations, our ability to service and interact with our clients may suffer, and we may not be able to implement contingency plans that depend on communication or travel.

Our operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer systems and networks. Although we take protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant, our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could have an adverse impact on their integrity and/or viability. If one or more of such events occur, this could jeopardize our or our clients' or counterparties' confidential and other information processed and stored in, and transmitted through, our computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our, our clients', our counterparties' or third parties' operations. We may be required to expend significant additional resources to modify our protective measures, to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures or to make required notifications, and we may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are either not insured or not fully covered through any insurance that we maintain.

We may be required to make substantial payments under certain indemnification agreements.

In connection with our conversion from a limited liability company to a corporation, we entered into agreements that provide for us to indemnify our former members against certain tax liabilities relating to pre-conversion periods. If we are required to make payments under these indemnification agreements, our financial condition could be adversely affected.

Difficult market conditions can adversely affect our business in many ways, which could materially reduce our revenue or income.

Our business, operating results and financial condition has been materially and adversely affected by adverse conditions in the global financial markets and adverse economic conditions throughout the world since the third quarter of 2007. 2008 was particularly difficult, marked by the failure or near failure of a number of large and prestigious firms in the financial services industry. Although market conditions improved in 2009 and in 2010 and the U.S. economy has begun to recover, we cannot predict the timing, length or extent of any economic recovery. We have no control over the political events and the global and local economic developments that influence market conditions and dynamics.

Our revenues are directly related to the volume and value of investment banking transactions in which we are involved. During periods of unfavorable market or economic conditions, such as those that existed throughout 2008, the first quarter of 2009, and from May 2010 to early September 2010, the volume and size of these transactions decreased, thereby reducing the demand for our services and increasing price competition among financial services companies seeking those engagements. In addition, weakness in equity markets and diminished trading volume of securities adversely impacted our sales and trading business. Finally, the general decline in the value of securities adversely impacted our investment portfolio. The impact of these factors was exacerbated by our fixed costs and our inability to scale back other costs within a time frame sufficient to match any decreases in revenue relating to market and economic conditions.

Significantly expanded corporate governance and public disclosure requirements may result in fewer public offerings and discourage companies from engaging in capital market transactions, which may reduce the number of investment banking opportunities available for us to pursue.

Highly-publicized financial scandals in recent years have led to investor concerns over the integrity of the U.S. financial markets, and have prompted the U.S. Congress, the SEC, NYSE and Nasdaq to significantly expand corporate governance and public disclosure requirements. To the extent that private companies, in order to avoid becoming subject to these new requirements, decide to forego public offerings or elect to be listed on foreign markets, our underwriting business may be adversely affected. In addition, provisions of the SOX and the corporate governance rules imposed by self-regulatory organizations and stock exchanges have diverted the attention of many companies away from capital market transactions, including securities offerings and acquisition and disposition transactions. In particular, companies that either are or are planning to become public companies are incurring significant expenses in complying with the SEC reporting requirements relating to internal controls over financial reporting, and companies that disclose material weaknesses in such controls under the new standards may have greater difficulty accessing the capital markets. These factors, in addition to adopted or proposed accounting and disclosure changes, may have an adverse effect on our business.

Financial services firms have been subject to increased scrutiny over the last several years, increasing the risk of financial liability and reputational harm resulting from adverse regulatory actions.

The financial services industry has experienced increased scrutiny from a variety of regulators, including the SEC, the NYSE, Nasdaq, FINRA and state attorney generals. This regulatory and enforcement environment has created uncertainty with respect to a number of transactions that had historically been entered into by financial services firms and that were generally believed to be permissible and appropriate. We may be adversely affected by changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules by these governmental authorities and self-regulatory organizations. Each of the regulatory bodies with jurisdiction over us has regulatory powers dealing with many aspects of financial services, including, but not limited to, the authority to fine us and to grant, cancel, restrict or otherwise impose conditions on the right to carry on particular businesses. For example, a failure to comply with the obligations imposed by the Exchange Act on broker-dealers and the Investment Advisers Act on investment advisers, including record-keeping, advertising and operating requirements, disclosure obligations and prohibitions on fraudulent activities, or by the Investment Company Act of 1940, could result in investigations, sanctions and reputational damage. We also may be adversely affected as a result of new or revised legislation or regulations imposed by the SEC, other U.S. or foreign governmental regulatory authorities, FINRA or other self-regulatory organizations that supervise the financial markets. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could have adverse financial effects on us or harm our reputation, which could harm our business prospects.

Financial services firms are subject to numerous conflicts of interests or perceived conflicts. The SEC and other federal and state regulators have increased their scrutiny of potential conflicts of interest. We have adopted, and regularly review and update, various policies, controls and procedures to address or limit actual or perceived conflicts. However, appropriately addressing conflicts of interest is complex and difficult and our reputation could be damaged if we fail, or appear to fail, to appropriately address conflicts of interest. Our policies and procedures to address or limit actual or perceived conflicts may also result in increased costs and additional operational personnel. Failure to adhere to these policies and procedures may result in regulatory sanctions or litigation against us. For example, the research operations of investment banks have been and remain the subject of heightened regulatory scrutiny which has led to increased restrictions on the interaction between equity research analysts and investment banking professionals at securities firms. A number of securities firms in the United States reached a global settlement in 2003 and 2004 with certain federal and state securities regulators and self-regulatory organizations to resolve investigations into the alleged conflicts of interest of research analysts, which resulted in rules that have imposed additional costs and limitations on the conduct of our business.

PIPE transactions have been subject to intense regulatory scrutiny over the last few years. To the extent the investor interest is reduced as a result, our business will be adversely affected.

A significant factor in our growth to date has been our leading position as placement agent in PIPE transactions. These transactions usually can be accomplished in less time and at less cost than registered public offerings. Various regulatory and governmental agencies, including the SEC, have been reviewing PIPE transactions. Periodically, we receive requests for information from the SEC and other regulatory and governmental agencies regarding PIPEs in general or regarding specific transactions. In most cases, these communications include a request for copies of transaction documents. We always comply with these requests. If the SEC or any other regulatory agency promulgates regulations that make it more difficult or expensive to consummate PIPE transactions, investors and issuers may prefer other financing strategies, such as registered public offerings. Since underwriting registered public offerings has not historically been a significant source of revenue for us, any decline in the number of PIPE transactions could have a material adverse impact on our business, operations and financial condition, which may cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our exposure to legal liability is significant, and damages and other costs that we may be required to pay in connection with litigation and regulatory inquiries, and the reputational harm that could result from legal action against us, could adversely affect our businesses.

We face significant legal risks in our businesses and, in recent years, the volume of claims and amount of damages sought in litigation and regulatory proceedings against financial institutions have been significant. These risks include potential liability under securities or other laws for materially false or misleading statements made in connection with securities offerings and other transactions, employment claims, potential liability for "fairness opinions" and other advice we provide to participants in strategic transactions and disputes over the terms and conditions of complex trading arrangements.

As an investment banking firm, we depend to a large extent on our reputation for integrity and professionalism to attract and retain clients. Moreover, our role as advisor to our clients on important underwriting or mergers and acquisitions transactions involves complex analysis and the exercise of professional judgment, including rendering "fairness opinions" in connection with mergers and acquisitions and other transactions. Therefore, our activities may subject us to the risk of significant legal liabilities to our clients and aggrieved third parties, including our clients' stockholders who could bring securities class action suits against us. Our investment banking engagements typically include broad indemnities from our clients and provisions to limit our exposure to legal claims relating to our services. However, there can be no assurance that these provisions will protect us or be enforceable in all cases. As a result, we may incur significant legal and other expenses in defending against litigation and may be required to pay substantial damages for settlements and adverse judgments. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could harm our results of operations or harm our reputation, which could adversely affect our business and prospects.

Employee misconduct, which is difficult to detect and deter, could harm us by impairing our ability to attract and retain clients and subjecting us to significant legal liability and reputational harm.

Over the past number of years, there have been a number of highly-publicized cases involving fraud or other misconduct by employees in the financial services industry, and there is a risk that our employees could engage in misconduct that adversely affects our business. For example, we often deal with confidential matters of great significance to our clients. If our employees were to improperly use or disclose confidential information provided by our clients, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and suffer serious harm to our reputation, financial position, current client relationships and ability to attract future clients. The violation of these obligations and standards by any of our employees would adversely affect us and our clients. It is not always possible to deter employee misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not be effective in all cases. If our employees engage in misconduct, our business could be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We cannot assure you that an active trading market for our common stock will continue. Any decrease in trading volume could make it more difficult for you to liquidate your position in a timely fashion.

Since October 16, 2007, our common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Market, trading under the symbol "RODM". Since then, there have periods when our stock was thinly traded. We cannot assure you that an established and liquid trading market for our stock will continue. Accordingly, investors should consider the potential lack of liquidity and the long-term nature of an investment in our common stock prior to investing.

The market price of our common stock may be volatile.

Since October 16, 2007, the day our stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq Global Market, through March 15, 2011, the closing sales price of our common stock has fluctuated from \$6.35 to \$0.19. This wide range could be attributable to a number of factors including one or more of the following:

- actual or anticipated fluctuations in our financial condition or results of operations;
- the success or failure of our operating strategies and our perceived prospects and those of the financial services industry in general;
- realization of any of the risks described in this section;
- failure to be covered by securities analysts or failure to meet the expectations of securities analysts;

- a decline in the stock prices of peer companies; and
- a discount in the trading multiple of our common stock relative to that of common stock of certain of our peer companies due to perceived risks associated with our smaller size.

As a result, shares of our common stock may trade at prices significantly below the price you paid to acquire them. Furthermore, declines in the price of our common stock may adversely affect our ability to conduct future offerings or to recruit and retain key employees, including our managing directors and other key professional employees.

If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our industry or if they downgrade us or our sector, the price of our common stock could decline.

The trading market for our common stock may depend, in part, on research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our industry. Negative reports about us or the financial services industry could have an adverse impact on the price of our stock. In addition, while the financial services industry receives extensive coverage, our stock only receives limited coverage, which may also adversely impact liquidity. In addition, given the limited coverage of our stock, one negative report could have a disproportionate impact on the price of our stock.

Provisions of our organizational documents may discourage an acquisition of us, which could adversely impact the price of our common stock.

Our organizational documents contain provisions that may impede the removal of directors and may discourage a third party from making a proposal to acquire us. Our Board of Directors has the ability to take defensive measures that could impede or thwart a takeover such as, under certain circumstances, adopting a poison pill or causing us to issue preferred stock that has greater voting rights than our common stock. If a change of control or change in management that our stockholders might otherwise consider to be favorable is prevented or delayed, the market price of our common stock could decline.

We are controlled by a limited number of stockholders whose interests may differ from those of our other stockholders.

As of March 15, 2011, our largest stockholder, Paul Revere, LLC ("Revere"), owned approximately 38% of our outstanding common stock. Revere is owned one-third by Edward Rubin, our Chief Executive Officer and President, and a trust for the benefit of certain members of his family, and two-thirds by a trust, the beneficiaries of which are the wife and children of Michael Vasinkevich, our Vice Chairman. In addition, our other senior executive officers collectively own approximately 7% of our common stock. As a result, our public stockholders have limited influence over the election of directors, management, company policies or major corporate decisions that require the consent of stockholders owning a majority of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock, such as mergers, consolidations and the sale of all or substantially all of our assets. This could adversely impact the market value of our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in New York City on the 20th floor at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, where we sublease 40,300 square feet under a lease that expires in October 2013. In addition, we have an office in Houston, TX.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We face significant legal risks in our businesses and, in recent years, the volume of claims and amount of damages sought in litigation and regulatory proceedings against investment banking firms have been increasing. These risks include potential liability under Federal securities and other laws in connection with securities offerings and other transactions, as well as advice and opinions we may provide concerning strategic transactions. In addition, like most investment banking firms, we could be the subject of claims made by current and former employees arising out of their employment or termination of employment with us. These claims often relate to dissatisfaction with an employee's bonus or separation payment, or involve allegations that the employee was the subject of some form of discrimination, retaliation or other unlawful employment practice.

Item 4. [Removed and Reserved]

PART II

Item 5. Market Price of Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market and traded under the symbol "RODM." The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing prices per share for our common stock, as reported on Nasdaq. The quotations reflect interdealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commissions, and may not represent actual transactions.

	Sales Closing Price			•
		High	L	ow
2010				
First Quarter	\$	5.53	\$	3.91
Second Quarter		4.62		2.50
Third Quarter		3.10		1.99
Fourth Quarter		3.28		2.06
2009				
First Quarter		1.10		0.19
Second Quarter		1.04		0.29
Third Quarter		6.35		0.98
Fourth Quarter		6.16		3.22

As of March 11, 2011, we had approximately 260 stockholders of record.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain earnings to finance our ongoing operations and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Future policy with respect to payment of dividends on the common stock will be determined by our Board of Directors based upon conditions then existing, including our earnings and financial condition, capital requirements and other relevant factors.

Information concerning our equity compensation plans required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K appears in Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and will be included in our definitive proxy statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Period	(a) Total Number of Shares Purchased	Pri	Average ce Paid r Share	(c) Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs (1)	(d) Maximum Number of Shares That May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (1)	
October 1 - October 31, 2010	257,500	\$	2.40	257,500	323,304	
November 1 - November 30, 2010	194,500	\$	2.69	194,500	1,994,874	(2)
December 1 - December 31, 2010	226,300	\$	2.62	226,300	1,768,574	(2)
Total	678,300	\$	2.56	678,300		

⁽¹⁾ On May 25, 2010 we announced a stock repurchase program covering the purchase of up to an aggregate of \$5 million of our common stock in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. On November 15, 2010 we announced an increase of an additional \$5 million to our stock repurchase program.

⁽²⁾ Based on closing price per share of our common stock on December 31, 2010 (\$2.68 per share).

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes our selected historical consolidated financial data for the periods and at the dates indicated. You should read this information in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We derived our selected historical consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, and 2006 and for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, and 2006, from our audited consolidated financial statements. The results of operations for certain businesses that the Company no longer owns are reported as discontinued operations.

Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts	Year Ended December 31,					
-	2010	2009	2008	2007	2006	
Revenues:						
Investment banking \$	87,245	90,433	52,473	55,829	43,081	
Merchant banking	1,573	36,018	_	-	-	
Commissions	4,102	4,423	6,492	6,914	5,161	
Conference fees	3,158	1,598	2,395	2,472	2,093	
Principal transactions Interest and other income	(12,597) 134	(512) 265	(13,048) 876	3,872 883	10,809 187	
Total revenues	83,615	132,225	49,188	69,970	61,351	
Operating expenses:						
Compensation and benefits	54,653	62,437	34,639	41,333	25,889	
Conference expense	9,932	3,379	6,223	5,903	4,748	
Professional and consulting	6,504	7,450	6,276	4,731	6,181	
Communication and market research	3,545	2,750	2,646	1,981	1,452	
Business development	5,522	2,228	2,926	3,006	1,880	
Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles	933	1,327	21,719	376		
Other	10,570	10,574	9,714	4,566	4,121	
Total operating expenses	91,659	90,145	84,143	61,896	44,271	
Operating income (loss) Interest expense	(8,044)	42,080	(34,955)	8,0 74 3,772	17,060	
Income (loss) before income taxes	(8,044)	42,080	(34,955)	4,302	17,060	
Income tax expense (benefit)	(2,487)	(3,913)	2,482	(440)	880	
Net income (loss) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest	(5,557)	45,993 18,695	(37,437)	4,742 -	16,180	
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	(5,557)	27,298	(37,437)	4,742	16,180	
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-	17	338	
Net income (loss) to common stockholders	(5,557)	27,298	(37,437)	4,759	16,518	
Unrealized (loss) gain on investments, net of tax	Spinster = in			(141)	1,002	
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain on investments	-		141	(1,002)		
Comprehensive income (loss)	(3,557)	27,298	(37-296)	3,616	17,520	
Basic income (loss) per common share:	Section (Section 2)		=			
From continuing operations From discontinued operations	(0.15)	0.77	(1.12)	0.21 0.00	0.89	
Net income 3	(0.15)	0.77	(1.12)	9.21	0.91	
Diluted income (loss) per common share:			and the second s		PROS. (1994), 000000000000000000000000000000000000	
From continuing operations From discontinued operations	(0.15)	0.73	(1.12) -	0,20 0.00	0.88 0.02	
Net income	(0.15)	10.76	(1.12)	0.20	0.90	
Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic	36,079	35,588	33, 3 75	23,039	18,160	
	36,079	37,399	33,373	25,039	18,483	
Diluted State of the Control of the	303079				10,703	

Year	Ended	December	31
ı caı	Linucu	Determines	J1.

	2010	2009	2008	2007	2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 14,798	15,546	21,754	54,834	10,387
Financial instruments owned, at fair value	\$ 37,980	56,156	13,872	9,011	14,156
Total assets	\$ 81,103	94,886	47,682	71,872	38,106
Total liabilities	\$ 28,842	19,445	17,148	11,104	16,080
Common shareholders' equity	\$ 52,261	63,382	30,535	60,768	22,026

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Report.

Overview

We are a full-service investment bank dedicated to providing corporate finance, strategic advisory and related services to public and private companies across multiple sectors and regions. We also provide research and sales and trading services to institutional investors. We are the leader in the PIPE (private investment in public equity) and RD (registered direct offering) transaction markets. We have been ranked the #1 Placement Agent by deal volume of PIPE and RD financing transactions completed every year since 2005. The sectors that we currently serve include life science/healthcare, energy, metals/mining, financial services and cleantech and the regions we currently serve include the United States and China. Our primary product and service offerings include financing transactions, including private placements and public offerings. We also provide research and sales and trading services to institutional investors.

Business Environment

Market conditions and valuations for companies in the life science, China and other sectors in which we are active, as well as general market conditions, can materially affect our financial performance. On May 6, 2010, the market experienced its "flash crash", with the Dow Jones Industrial Average declining 1,000 points, and from that day through the end of the third quarter, the equity markets generally performed poorly. Between May 6, 2010 and early September 2010, many of our clients and target companies have experienced volatility in their stock prices. When the stock markets are in a downturn or in a period of volatility, it is challenging to generate investment banking revenue from capital markets activity.

Business Segments

We operate in two business segments, Capital Markets and Merchant Banking. The Capital Markets reportable segment includes our investment banking, sales and trading activities and research. The Capital Markets reportable segment is managed as a single operating segment that provides the following principal sources of revenue:

- investment banking fees, which are derived from corporate finance activities and strategic advisory services;
- realized and unrealized gains with respect to securities held for our own account;
- commissions on sales and trading activities;
- conference fees; and
- other miscellaneous sources of revenues, such as interest.

Although we have multiple sources of revenue derived within Capital Markets, most of our revenue is derived from our investment banking services and consists of private placement, underwriting and strategic advisory fees earned upon the successful completion of financing or other types of corporate transactions, such as mergers, acquisitions and dispositions.

The Merchant Banking segment is primarily comprised of operating activities related to Aceras BioMedical. On May 12, 2008, we formed Aceras BioMedical, a joint venture through which we, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC, make principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, we formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of our principal-related businesses. We receive 50% of Aceras BioMedical's economic interest in all investments made.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes. Actual results can and will differ from estimates. These differences could be material to the financial statements.

We believe our application of accounting policies and the estimates required therein are reasonable. These accounting policies and estimates are constantly re-evaluated, and adjustments are made when facts and circumstances dictate a change. Historically, actual results have not differed materially from those determined using necessary estimates.

Our management believes that our critical accounting policies (policies that are both material to the financial condition and results of operations and require management's most difficult subjective or complex judgments) are our valuation of financial instruments, income taxes and our use of estimates related to compensation and benefits during the year.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Fair value generally is based on quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined based on other relevant factors, including dealer price quotations, price activity for equivalent instruments and valuation pricing models. Among the factors considered in determining the fair value of financial instruments are discount margins, weighted average spreads, discounted anticipated cash flows, the terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, as well as other measurements. Certain financial instruments have bid and ask prices that can be observed in the marketplace. For financial instruments whose inputs are based on bid-ask prices, mid-market pricing is applied and adjusted to the point within the bid-ask range that meets our best estimate of fair value. For offsetting positions in the same financial instrument, the same price within the bid-ask spread is used to measure both the long and short positions.

The valuation process for financial instruments may include the use of valuation models and other techniques. Adjustments to valuations derived from valuation models may be made when, in our judgment, either the size of the position in the financial instrument in a non-active market or other features of the financial instrument such as its complexity, or the market in which the financial instrument is traded require that an adjustment be made to the value derived from the models. An adjustment may be made if a financial instrument is subject to sales restrictions that would result in a price less than the quoted market price. Adjustments from the price derived from a valuation model reflect management's judgment that other participants in the market for the financial instrument being measured at fair value would also consider in valuing that same financial instrument and are adjusted for assumptions about risk uncertainties and market conditions. Results from valuation models and valuation techniques in one period may not be indicative of future period fair value measurements.

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, not yet purchased are stated at fair value, with related changes in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflected in principal transactions, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Equity interests in certain private equity securities and limited partnership interests are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value, which is often represented at initial cost until significant transactions or developments indicate that a change in the carrying value of the securities is appropriate. This represents our best estimate of exit price. Generally, the carrying values of these securities will be increased or decreased based on company performance in those instances where market values are readily ascertainable by reference to substantial transactions occurring in the marketplace or quoted market prices.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, we use various methods including market, income and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, we utilize assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable firm inputs. We utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques, we are required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial instrument assets and liabilities carried at fair value have been classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as listed equities.

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies calibrated to observable market inputs. These models are primarily industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including discount margins, credit spreads, discounted anticipated cash flows, the terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, time value, yield curve, default rates, as well as other measurements. In order to be classified as Level 2, substantially all of these assumptions would need to be observable in the marketplace or able to be derived from observable data or supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace.

Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies utilizing significant inputs that are unobservable from objective sources. Included in this category are warrants, private securities, convertible notes and loans receivable received in conjunction with our investment banking and merchant banking activities and limited partnership interests.

Compensation and Benefits

The use of estimates is important in determining compensation and benefits expenses for interim and year end periods. A substantial portion of our compensation and benefits represents discretionary bonuses. In addition to the level of net revenues, our overall compensation expense in any given year is influenced by prevailing labor markets, revenue mix and our use of equity-based compensation programs. We believe the most appropriate way to allocate estimated annual discretionary bonuses among interim periods is in proportion to net revenues earned or reasonably expected. Consequently, we generally accrue interim compensation and benefits based on annual targeted compensation amounts and interim revenues received.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Our management evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets quarterly. In determining the possible future realization of deferred tax assets, the future taxable income from the following sources is taken into account: (a) the reversal of taxable temporary differences; (b) future operations exclusive of reversing temporary differences; and (c) tax planning strategies that, if necessary, would be implemented to accelerate taxable income into years in which net operating losses might otherwise expire.

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Our management does not believe that the Company has any material uncertain tax position requiring recognition or measurement in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740-10.

Our policy is to classify penalties and interest associated with uncertain tax positions, if required, as a component of our income tax provision. As a result of having no material unrecognized tax benefits on uncertain tax positions, we have no material amounts for associated interest and penalties recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition or the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Results of Operations

2010 compared to 2009

The following table sets forth the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended				
	December :	31, 2010	December :	31, 2009	
		% of net		% of net	
		Revenue		Revenue	
Revenues:					
Investment banking \$	87,245		90,433		
Merchant banking	1,573		36,018	Williams of the second	
Commissions	4,102		4,423		
Conference fees	3,158	y Horizania Kritaria	1,598		
Principal transactions	(12,597)		(512)		
Interest and other income	134		265		
Total revenues	83,615		132,225		
Operating expenses:				Commence of the commence of th	
Compensation and benefits	54,653	65.4 %	62,437	47.2 %	
Conference fees	9,932	11.9 %	3,379	2.6 %	
Professional and consulting	6,504	7.8 %	7,450	5.6 %	
Occupancy and equipment rentals	3,111	3.7 %	3,125	2.4 %	
Advertising and marketing	1,520	1.8 %	1,582	1.2 %	
Communication and market research	3,545	4.2 %	2,750	2.1 %	
Depreciation and amortization	1,613	1.9 %	2,282	1.7 %	
Business development	5,522	6.6 %	2,228	1.7 %	
Office supplies	662	0.8 %	677	0.5 %	
Impairment of goodwill	933	1.1 %	1,327	1 %	
Bad debt expense	666	0.8 %	okratis trom Silomar (sameter Persalation Free State (1974) . S —	0 %	
Other	2,998	3.6 %	2,908	2.2 %	
Total operating expenses	91,659	109.6 %	90,145	68.2 %	
Income (loss) before income taxes	(8,044)	-9.6 %	42,080	31.8 %	
Income tax expense (benefit)	(2,487)	The state of the s	(3,913)	as agree speed of the Million from Europe, up to Center to	
Net income (loss)	(5,557)	F-w	45,993		
Less: Net income to non-controlling interest		A R. L. Server Med Stille Server According	18,695	W. S. S. 47800 111, 71.	
Net income (loss) to common stockholders	(5,557)		21,298	Service Control of the Control of th	

Operating income for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 included the following non-cash expenses (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended		
	December 31, 2010	December 31, 2009	
Stock-based compensation	\$ (73)	5,799	
Amortization of forgivable loans	2,639	1,898	
Depreciation and amortization Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets	1,613 933	2.282 1,327	
Total	\$ 5,112	11,306	

Revenues

Merchant Banking Segment

Merchant banking revenue, consisting of gains (or losses) on investments by Aceras BioMedical and other principal investments activity, was \$1.6 million. We recognize revenue on investments in the merchant banking segment based on realized and unrealized gains (or losses) reported. The value of Aceras BioMedical's assets was determined based on a valuation as of December 31, 2010, taking into consideration the cost of the investment, market participant inputs, non-binding offers made by third parties, estimated cash flows based on entity specific criteria, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, market conditions, liquidity, operating results and other qualitative and quantitative factors. The values at which our investments are carried on our books are adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each quarter and the instability in general economic conditions, stock markets and regulatory conditions and those characteristics specific to the underlying investments may result in significant changes in the estimated fair value of these investments.

Capital Market Segment

Within our Capital Markets segment we derive revenues from two primary sources, (1) investment banking and (2) sales and trading.

Total revenue for 2010 was \$82.0 million, representing a decrease of 15% from \$96.2 million in the comparable period of 2009. The decrease was primarily due to a \$12.1 million increase in principal transaction losses.

Investment Banking Revenue

Our investment banking revenue is derived from private placement and underwriting activities and strategic advisory services. The following table sets forth our revenue from our investment banking activities for the years ended December 30, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended			
	Decemb	er 31, 2010	Decemb	er 31, 2009
Revenue:	RESERVED.			
Private placement and underwriting	\$	74,288	\$	83,468
Strategic advisory		12,957	egg all	6,965
Total investment banking revenue	2	87,245	\$	90,433

Investment banking revenue was \$87.2 million for 2010, which included \$12.7 million related to warrants received as compensation for activities as underwriter or placement agent valued using Black-Scholes, as compared to revenue of \$90.4 million in 2009, which included \$24.2 million related to warrants and notes received as compensation for activities as underwriter or placement agent at fair value:

- Private placement and underwriting revenue for 2010 was \$74.3 million, including \$12.7 million of fair value related to warrants received, compared to \$83.5 million in 2009, including \$24.2 million warrants received. The increase in private placement and underwriting revenue is a result of increased financing activity in our targeted verticals, especially in life sciences and China, as well as increased demand for capital market offerings, including private placements, registered directs and follow-on offerings.
- Strategic advisory fees for 2010 were \$13.0 million, compared to \$7.0 million in 2009. The increase in strategic advisory was due to significant advisory transactions in the oil & gas and metals & mining sectors.

Sales and Trading

Commission revenues decreased by \$0.3 million, or 7%, to \$4.1 million for 2010, compared with \$4.4 million in 2009. The decrease is attributable to a lower volume of transactions that occurred in 2010 as well as a decrease in sales and trading employees throughout the year.

Principal Transactions

Principal transactions, reflecting the change in fair value of our warrant portfolio, generated a loss for 2010 of \$12.6 million, compared with a \$512,000 loss in 2009. The increase in principal transaction losses was attributed to market instability, lack of liquidity and issuer specific events in 2010.

The following discussion of expenses will be on the combined Capital Markets and Merchant Banking expenses.

Expenses

Compensation

Compensation expense decreased \$7.8 million, or 12%, while total net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest) decreased 16% for 2010. The ratio of compensation to net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest and principal transaction losses) was 57% for 2010 as compared to 55% in 2009. The increase in compensation and benefits is attributed to our variable compensation structure, whereby the majority of compensation expense is based on revenue production.

Non-Compensation Expenses

Non-compensation expense was \$37.0 million for 2010, versus \$27.7 million in 2009, or 44% of net revenues for 2010 versus 24% of net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest) in 2009. The increase in non-compensation was primarily due to expenses related to the China Investment Conference in the first quarter, the London Investment Conference in the second quarter, and the New York Investment Conference in the third quarter, as well as higher business development expenses.

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit was \$2.5 million, or a 30.9% tax rate, for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to an income tax benefit of \$3.9 million or (9.3%) tax rate for 2009. The primary reason for the differential in the tax rates was a \$3.9 million reduction in the Company's valuation allowance in 2009.

2009 compared to 2008

The following table sets forth the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended				
	December 3	31, 2009	December 31, 2008		
	-	% of net		% of net	
		Revenue		Revenue	
Revenues:			ija i	-	
Investment banking	\$ 90,433		52,473		
Merchant banking	36,018		-		
Commissions	4,423		6,492		
Conference fees	1,598		2,395		
Principal transactions	(512)		(13,048)		
Interest and other income	265		876		
Total revenues	132,225	.' "'' .	49,188		
Operating expenses:					
Compensation and benefits	62,437	47.2 %	34,639	70.4 %	
Conference fees	3,379	2.6 %	6,223	12.7 %	
Professional and consulting	7,450	5.6 %	6,276	12.8 %	
Occupancy and equipment rentals	3,125	2.4 %	2,910	5.9 %	
Advertising and marketing	1,582	1.2 %	809	1.6 %	
Communication and market research	2,750	2.1 %	2,646	5.4 %	
Depreciation and amortization	2,282	1.7 %	2,384	4.8 %	
Business development	2,228	1.7 %	2,926	5.9 %	
Office supplies	677	0.5 %	569	1.2 %	
Impairment of goodwill	1,327	1.0 %	21,719	44.2 %	
Other	2,908	2.2 %	3,042	6.2 %	
Total operating expenses	90,145	68.2 %	84,143	171.1 %	
		-			
Income (loss) before income taxes	42,080	31.8 %	(34,955)	-71.1 %	
Income tax expense (benefit)	(3,913)		2,482		
Net income (loss)	45,993		(37,437)		
Less: Net income to non-controlling interest	18,695		-		
Net income (loss) to common stockholders	\$ 27,298		(37,437)		

Operating income for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 included the following non-cash expenses (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended		
	December 31, 2009	December 31, 2008	
Stock-based compensation	5,799	5,605	
Amortization of forgivable loans	1,898	777	
Depreciation and amortization Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets	2,282 1,327	2,384 21,719	
Total	11,306	30,485	

Revenues

Merchant Banking Segment

Merchant banking revenue, consisting of gains (or losses) on investments by Aceras BioMedical and other principal investments activity, was \$36.0 million. Merchant banking revenue, net of non-controlling interest, was \$17.3 million. We recognize revenue on investments in our merchant banking segment based on consolidated realized and unrealized gains (or losses) reported, including by Aceras BioMedical. The value of Aceras BioMedical's assets was determined based on an independent valuation prepared as of December 31, 2009, taking into consideration the cost of the investment, market participant inputs, non-binding offers made by third parties, estimated cash flows based on entity specific criteria, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, market conditions, liquidity, operating results and other qualitative and quantitative factors. The values at which our investments are carried on our books are adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each quarter and the instability in general economic conditions, stock markets and regulatory conditions and those characteristics specific to the underlying investments may result in significant changes in the estimated fair value of these investments.

In October 2009, we announced that BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (Nasdaq: BMRN) acquired Huxley Pharmaceuticals, Inc., an Aceras BioMedical privately held portfolio company. Under the terms of the transaction, BioMarin made payments of \$16 million to Huxley stockholders in 2009. An additional \$6.5 million based on the final approval of the purchased compound from the European Commission will be paid in 2010. Furthermore, Huxley stockholders, which include the Company, may receive up to approximately \$36 million in milestone payments if certain U.S. sales and development milestones are met in the future.

Capital Market Segment

Within our Capital Markets segment we derive revenues from two primary sources, (1) investment banking and (2) sales and trading.

Total revenue for 2009 was \$96.2 million, representing an increase of 96% from \$49.2 million in the comparable period of 2008. The increase was primarily due to a \$38.0 million increase in investment banking revenue.

Investment Banking Revenue

Our investment banking revenue is derived from private placement and underwriting activities and strategic advisory services. The following table sets forth our revenue from our investment banking activities for the years ended December 30, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands of dollars):

	Year Ended			
December 31, 2009		31, 2009	December 31, 2008	
Revenue:				
Private placement and underwriting	\$	83,468	43,489	
Strategic advisory		6,965	8,984	
Total investment banking revenue	***************************************	90,433	52,4/3	

Investment banking revenue was \$90.4 million for 2009, which included \$24.2 million related to warrants received as compensation for activities as underwriter or placement agent valued using Black-Scholes, as compared to revenue of \$52.5 million in 2008, which included \$13.7 million related to warrants and notes received as compensation for activities as underwriter or placement agent at fair value:

- Private placement and underwriting revenue for 2009 was \$83.5 million, including \$24.2 million of fair value related to warrants received, compared to \$43.5 million in 2008, including \$13.7 million warrants and a note received. The increase in private placement and underwriting revenue is a result of increased financing activity in our targeted verticals, especially in life sciences and China, as well as increased demand for capital market offerings, including private placements, registered directs and followon offerings.
- Strategic advisory fees for 2009 were \$7.0 million, compared to \$9.0 million in 2008.

Sales and Trading

Commission revenues decreased by \$2.1 million, or 32%, to \$4.4 million for 2009, compared with \$6.5 million in 2008. The decrease is attributable to a lower volume of transactions that occurred in 2009 as well as a decrease in sales and trading employees throughout the year.

Principal Transactions

Principal transactions generated a loss for 2009 of \$0.5 million, compared with a \$13.0 million loss in 2008. The decrease in principal transaction losses was attributed to unprecedented market instability, lack of liquidity and issuer specific events in 2008.

The following discussion of expenses will be on the combined Capital Markets and Merchant Banking expenses.

Expenses

Compensation

Compensation expense increased \$27.8 million, or 80%, while total net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest) increased 131% for 2009. The ratio of compensation to net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest) was 55% for 2009 as compared to 70% in 2008. The increase in compensation and benefits is attributed to our variable compensation structure, whereby the majority of compensation expense is based on revenue production. Additionally, while we sizably reduced our employee headcount as of December 31, 2009 as compared to December 31, 2008, during 2009 we made significant hires in connection with expanding our China practice, which temporarily increases compensation costs as production revenues build.

Non-Compensation Expenses

Non-compensation expense was \$27.7 million for 2009, versus \$49.5 million in 2008, or 24% of net revenues (less net income to non-controlling interest) for 2009 versus 101% of net revenues in 2008. The decrease in non-compensation expenses is mostly due to a \$20.4 million reduction in impairment charges related to goodwill and other intangible assets. Additionally, increases in professional fees due to a FINRA arbitration proceeding involving a former employee and advertising and marketing fees due to an expanded technology based marketing program were offset by lower business development expenses and conference expenses as a result of the cost-reduction initiatives initiated in early 2009.

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit was \$3.9 million, or a 31.7% tax rate, for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to an income tax expense of \$2.5 million for 2008.

In the first quarter of 2009, we determined that it was not "more likely than not" that our net deferred tax assets would be realized and accordingly we recorded a valuation allowance fully offsetting our net deferred tax assets, reducing them to zero. The valuation allowance of \$3.9 million was released in the fourth quarter of 2009 due to, among other factors, the continued trend of improved profitability, and the historical profitability prior to the recent market upheaval, as well as the Company's financial outlook for 2010 and beyond.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically satisfied our capital and liquidity requirements through cash generated internally from operations. In addition, in March 2007, we completed a \$20.0 million private placement to accredited investors and in October 2007 we completed a public offering which generated net proceeds of approximately \$36.3 million.

At December 31, 2010, we had liquid assets, consisting of unrestricted cash, restricted cash, "Level I" liabilities, and current receivables of \$30.7 million. As of December 31, 2009, we had liquid assets of \$31.0 million.

The timing of bonus and retention compensation payments to our employees may significantly affect our cash position and liquidity from period-to-period. While our employees are generally paid salaries and draws on a semi-monthly basis during the year, bonus payments, which make up a significant portion of total compensation, will generally be paid semi-annually, although in some cases annually.

As a registered securities broker-dealer, we are subject to the net capital requirements of the uniform net capital requirement set forth in Rule 15c3-1 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). SEC regulations also provide that equity capital may not be withdrawn or cash dividends paid if certain minimum net capital requirements are not met. At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we had excess net capital of \$9.5 million and \$8.0 million, respectively. Regulatory net capital requirements may change based on investment and underwriting activities.

Because of the nature of settlement transactions in our investment banking and brokerage business, we regularly monitor our liquidity position, including our cash and net capital positions. In light of the uncertainty with respect to the timing of a market recovery and its potential impact on the timing of our receipt of anticipated funds from operating activities, we regularly explore capital raising alternatives.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were \$13.4 million at December 31, 2010, an increase of \$0.8 million from \$12.6 million at December 31, 2009.

Operating activities provided \$10.5 million of cash and cash equivalents during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010. Our \$9.2 million and \$6.8 million increase in accrued compensation payable and decrease in financial instruments owned, at fair value, respectively, from December 31, 2009 contributed to our cash position. Our accrued compensation balance increased during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, primarily due to our deferral of year-end 2010 bonus payments to February 2011.

The primary components of cash used by investing activities in 2010 were: (a) \$1.6 million in connection with the purchase of property and equipment and leasehold improvements; and (b) \$0.9 million and \$1.3 million in connection with contractual payments related to the acquisitions of Miller Mathis and COSCO, respectively.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were \$12.6 million at December 31, 2009, a decrease of \$5.8 million from \$18.4 million at December 31, 2008.

Operating activities used \$4.9 million of cash and cash equivalents during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. Our \$54.2 million and \$3.0 million increase in financial instruments owned, at fair value and receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing agencies, respectively, from December 31, 2008 contributed to the use of our cash. Our accrued compensation balance decreased \$5.2 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to our making 2008 and 2009 earned aggregate cash bonus payments to our employees during 2009.

The primary components of cash used by investing activities in 2009 were: (a) \$2.5 million in connection with the purchase of property and equipment and leasehold improvements; and (b) \$2.0 million and \$1.7 million in connection with the acquisitions of Miller Mathis and COSCO, respectively; offset by \$5.3 million of net cash provided by Aceras BioMedical investing activities.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we had a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of \$36.5 million. Operating activities used cash of \$11.1 million; investing activities used cash of \$22.9 million; and financing activities used cash of \$2.5 million. The primary components of cash used by operating activities were: (a) a net loss of \$37.4 million; (b) an increase in other assets of \$2.4 million; and (c) a \$3.4 million increase in restricted cash, offset by: (i) impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets of \$21.8 million; and (ii) share based compensation of \$5.6 million. The primary components of cash used by investing activities were: (a) \$4.5 million in connection with the acquisition of Miller Mathis; (b) \$8.1 million in connection with the acquisition of COSCO; and (c) the \$5.0 million purchase of GCM Group customer relationships. The primary components of cash used by financing activities were \$1.0 million for purchasing of treasury stock and a \$1.4 million distribution to our former members.

Contractual Obligations

Our commitments and contingencies include: (a) real property leases; (b) equipment leases; and (c) the Aceras BioMedical joint venture agreement. Our principal offices are located at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York where we lease the entire 20th floor. The lease expires in October 2013.

The following table sets forth information relating to our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands of dollars):

	Payments due by Period				
	2011	2012	2013	2014	Total
Operating lease obligations	\$ 3,228	3,181	2,585	56	9,050
Aceras BioMedical joint venture agreement	12,142 (1)	-	-	-	12,142
Total	\$ 15,370	5,181	2,585	56	21,192

Dannessata Jula ku, Dania J

(1) Pursuant to the Aceras BioMedical joint venture agreement, the timing of these expenditures may vary based upon investment investment timing considerations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

An off-balance sheet arrangement is any contractual arrangement involving an unconsolidated entity under which a company has (a) made guarantees, (b) a retained or a contingent interest in transferred assets, (c) any obligation under certain derivative instruments or (d) any obligation under a material variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk, or credit risk support to the Company, or engages in leasing, hedging, or research and development services for the benefit of the Company.

We do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

Risk Management

Risk is an inherent part of our business and activities. The extent to which we properly and effectively identify, assess, monitor and manage each of the various types of risk involved in our activities is critical to our financial soundness and profitability. We seek to identify, assess, monitor and manage the following principal risks involved in our business activities: market, credit, operational, legal and compliance, new business and reputational. Risk management is a multi-faceted process that requires communication, judgment and knowledge of financial products and markets. Management takes an active role in the risk management process and requires specific administrative and business functions to assist in the identification, assessment and control of various risks. Our risk management policies, procedures and methodologies are fluid in nature and are subject to ongoing review and modification.

Market Risk. The potential for changes in the value of financial instruments is referred to as market risk. Our market risk generally represents the risk of loss that may result from a change in the value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in equity prices, along with the level of volatility. Equity price risks result from exposure to changes in prices and volatilities of individual equities and warrants. We make dealer markets in equity securities. We attempt to hedge our exposure to market risk by managing our net long or short positions. Due to imperfections in correlations, gains and losses can occur even for positions that are hedged. Position limits in trading and inventory accounts are established and monitored on an ongoing basis.

Operational Risk. Operational risk generally refers to the risk of loss resulting from our operations, including, but not limited to, improper or unauthorized execution and processing of transactions, deficiencies in our operating systems, business disruptions and inadequacies or breaches in our internal control processes. Our businesses are highly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, transactions across markets. If any of our financial, accounting or other data processing systems do not operate properly or are disabled or if there are other shortcomings or failures in our internal processes, people or systems, we could suffer impairment to our liquidity, financial loss, a disruption of our businesses, liability to clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage. These systems may fail to operate properly or become disabled as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, including a disruption of electrical or communications services or our inability to occupy one or more of our buildings. The inability of our systems to accommodate an increasing volume of transactions could also constrain our ability to expand our businesses.

We also face the risk of operational failure or termination of any of the clearing agents, exchanges, clearing houses or other financial intermediaries we use to facilitate our securities transactions. Any such failure or termination could adversely affect our ability to effect transactions and manage our exposure to risk.

In addition, despite the contingency plans we have in place, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our businesses and the communities in which they are located. This may include a disruption involving electrical, communications, transportation or other services used by us or third parties with which we conduct business.

Our operations rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer systems and networks. Although we take protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant, our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code, and other events that could have a security impact. If one or more of such events occur, this potentially could jeopardize our or our clients' or counterparties' confidential and other information processed and stored in, and transmitted through, our computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our, our clients', our counterparties' or third parties' operations. We may be required to expend significant additional resources to modify our protective measures or to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, and we may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are either not insured against or not fully covered through any insurance maintained by us.

Legal and Compliance Risk. Legal and compliance risk includes the risk of non-compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. We are subject to extensive regulations. We have various procedures addressing issues such as regulatory capital requirements, sales and trading practices, anti-money laundering and record keeping. We also maintain an anonymous hotline for employees or others to report suspected inappropriate actions by us or by our employees or agents.

New Business Risk. New business risk refers to the risks of entering into a new line of business or offering a new product. By entering a new line of business or offering a new product, we may face risks that we are unaccustomed to dealing with and may increase the magnitude of the risks we currently face. We review proposals for new businesses and new products to determine if we are prepared to handle the additional or increased risks associated with entering into such activities.

Reputational Risk. We recognize that maintaining our reputation among clients, investors, regulators and the general public is an important aspect of minimizing legal and operational risks. Maintaining our reputation depends on a large number of factors, including the selection of our clients and the conduct of our business activities. We seek to maintain our reputation by screening potential clients and by conducting our business activities in accordance with high ethical standards.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 810. The Company adopted further accounting changes described in ASC 810, Consolidation Topic, as of January 1, 2010, which required that the party who has the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and who has an obligation to absorb losses of the entity or a right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the entity consolidate the variable interest entity. The changes to ASC 810, effective as of January 1, 2010, eliminated the quantitative approach previously applied to assessing the consolidation of a variable interest entity and required ongoing reassessments for consolidation. Starting on January 1, 2010, the Company deconsolidated its investment in Aceras BioMedical because its joint venture partner, Aceras Partners, not the Company, most significantly impacts Aceras BioMedical's economic performance.

ASU 210-06. In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 210-06, "Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements", which requires reporting entities to make new disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair-value measurements including significant transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair-value measurements and information on purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis in the reconciliation of Level 3 fair-value measurements. The FASB also clarified existing fair-value measurement disclosure guidance about the level of disaggregation, inputs, and valuation techniques. Some of the new and revised disclosures are required to be implemented in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2009 and others in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. The Company implemented the required disclosures in 2010.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may result from the change in value of a financial instrument due to fluctuations in its market price. Market risk is inherent in all financial instruments. Market risk may be exacerbated in times of trading illiquidity when market participants refrain from transacting in normal quantities and/or at normal bid-offer spreads. Our exposure to market risk is directly related to our role as a financial intermediary in customer trading and to our market-making and investment activities.

We trade in equity securities as an active participant in both listed and OTC equity markets. We maintain securities in inventory to facilitate our market-making activities and customer order flow. Although we do not engage in proprietary trading, we may use a variety of risk management techniques and hedging strategies in the ordinary course of our trading business, including establishing position limits by product type and industry sector, closely monitoring inventory turnover, maintaining long and short positions in related securities, and using exchange-traded equity options and other derivative instruments. We do not use derivatives for speculative purposes.

In connection with our trading business, management also reviews reports appropriate to the risk profile of specific trading activities. Typically, market conditions are evaluated and transaction details and securities positions are reviewed.

These activities seek to ensure that trading strategies are within acceptable risk tolerance parameters, particularly when we commit our own capital to facilitate client trading. Our accounting department is actively involved in ensuring the integrity and clarity of the daily profit and loss statements, to the extent that we maintain trading positions for a period longer than one day. Activities include price verification procedures, position reconciliation and review of transaction booking. We believe that these procedures, which stress timely communications between our traders and senior management, are important elements of the risk management process.

At December 31, 2010, \$15.5 million, or 41% of \$37.9 million of financial instruments owned, at fair value, represented investments in warrants received in conjunction with our investment banking activities. \$10.6 million, or 28% of financial instruments owned is related to our merchant banking activity. The remaining 31% of the financial instruments owned represents a promissory note received in conjunction with our investment banking activities, listed equity securities, restricted securities and investments in affiliates at fair value.

The primary quantifiable market risk associated with our financial instruments is sensitivity to changes in interest rates. Interest rate risk represents the potential loss from adverse changes in market interest rates. The risk management strategies that we employ use various risk sensitivity metrics to measure such risk and to examine behavior under significant adverse market conditions. We use an interest rate sensitivity simulation to assess our interest rate risk exposure. For purposes of presenting the possible earnings effect of a hypothetical, adverse change in interest rates over the 12-month period from our reporting date, we assume that all interest rate sensitive financial instruments will be impacted by a hypothetical, immediate 100 basis point increase in interest rates as of the beginning of the period. The sensitivity is based upon the hypothetical assumption that all relevant types of interest rates that affect our results would increase instantaneously, simultaneously and to the same degree.

The sensitivity analyses of the interest rate sensitive financial instruments are hypothetical and should be used with caution. Changes in fair value based on a 1% or 2% variation in an estimate generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in the estimate to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular estimate on the fair value of financial instruments is calculated independent of changes in any other estimate; in practice, changes in one factor may result in changes in another factor, which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. In addition, the sensitivity analyses do not consider any action that the Company may take to mitigate the impact of any adverse changes in the key estimates.

Based on our analysis, as of December 31, 2010, the effect of a 100+/- basis point change in interest rates on the value of our warrant portfolio and promissory note and the resultant effect on our pre-tax income is considered immaterial.

The value of Aceras BioMedical's assets in our merchant banking activity was determined based on a valuation as of December 31, 2010, taking into consideration the cost of the investment, market participant inputs, non-binding offers made by third parties, estimated cash flows based on entity specific criteria, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, market conditions, liquidity, operating results and other qualitative and quantitative factors. The values at which our investments are carried on our books are adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each quarter and the instability in general economic conditions, stock markets and regulatory conditions may result in significant changes in the estimated fair value of these investments. The primary quantifiable market risk associated with our Aceras BioMedical assets is sensitivity to changes in interest rates. Based on our analysis as of December 31, 2010 assuming a 100 basis point increase in interest rates, we estimated the reduction of pre-tax income is considered immaterial.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information in response to this item is contained elsewhere in this Report beginning on Page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our "disclosure controls and procedures" (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act) Rules 13a-15(e) and 15-d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial statements; providing reasonable assurance that neceipts and expenditures of our assets are made in accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

- (a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
 - 1. Financial Statements. The following financial statements and the report of RRCG's independent auditor thereon, are filed herewith.
 - . Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 - . Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2010 and 2009
 - . Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
 - . Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009
 - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
 - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 - 2. Financial Statement Schedules.

None

3. Exhibits Incorporated by Reference or Filed with this Report.

Exhibit	
Number	<u>Description</u>
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 4, 2011, among the Company, HHC Acquisitions, Inc. and Hudson
	Holding Corporation(7)
3.1(a)	Certificate of Incorporation(1)
3.1(b)	Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation(2)
3.2	Bylaws(1)
4.1	Specimen stock certificate(2)
10.1**	2007 Amended and Restated Stock and Incentive Plan(4)
10.2**	2010 Stock Award and Incentive Plan(9)
10.3**	Michael Vasinkevich Employment Agreement(5)
10.4**	John J. Borer III Employment Agreement(5)
10.5**	Edward Rubin Employment Agreement(5)
10.6**	Amended and Restated Wesley Clark Employment Agreement(3)
10.7	Form of Tax Indemnification Agreement, dated as of July 10, 2007(3)
10.8	Form of Indemnification Agreement, dated as of July 10, 2007(3)
10.9**	Executive Bonus Plan(2)
10.10**	David Horin Employment Agreement(6)
10.11	Asset Purchase Agreement, dated May 9, 2008, between COSCO Capital Management LLC and its related companies
10.12	Operating Agreement of Aceras BioMedical LLC, as amended(8)
10.13**	Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Company and each of Messrs. Vasinkevich, Rubin, and Borer(5)
10.14	Form of Voting Agreement, dated January 4, 2011, among the Company and Certain Stockholders of Hudson Holding
	Corporation(7)
21.1	Subsidiaries*
23.1	Consent of KPMG LLP*
31.1	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
31.2	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
32.1	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
32.2	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

^{*} Filed herewith.

^{**} This exhibit is a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

⁽¹⁾ Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 22, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

⁽²⁾ Filed as an exhibit to Amendment #1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (SEC No. 333-144684) on September 20, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

⁽³⁾ Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

- Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.
- Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference. Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 18, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference. Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 5, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference. Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.
- (6)
- (8)
- Filed as an exhibit to our Schedule 14A dated March 26, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference. (9)

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ EDWARD RUBIN

Edward Rubin — Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 15, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. and in the capacities indicated on this 15th day of March, 2011.

/s/ EDWARD RUBIN	Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Edward Rubin	(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ DAVID HORIN	Chief Financial Officer
David Horin	(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ WESLEY K. CLARK Wesley K. Clark	Chairman and Director
/s/ MICHAEL VASINKEVICH Michael Vasinkevich	Vice Chairman and Director
/s/ JOHN J. BORER III	Senior Managing Director, Head of
John J. Borer III	Investment Banking and Director
/s/ WINSTON CHURCHILL Winston Churchill	Director
/s/ RICHARD M. COHEN Richard M. Cohen	Director
/s/ PETER F. DRAKE Peter F. Drake	Director
/s/ SAM DRYDEN Sam Dryden	Director
/s/ MARK L. FRIEDMAN Mark L. Friedman	Director
/s/ MARVIN I. HAAS	Director

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC.

INDEX TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F-2
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2010 and 2009	F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31,	
2010, 2009, and 2008	F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended	
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008	F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008	F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-7

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries ("the Company") as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as established by the Auditing Standards Board (United States) and in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for consolidation of variable interest entities.

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York, New York March 15, 2011

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts

	December 31, 2010	December 31, 2009
Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents:	The state of the s	
Unrestricted Restricted	\$ 13,350 1,448	12,603 2,943
Total cash and cash equivalents	14,798	15,546
Financial instruments owned, at fair value:	- The AMERICAN CONTRACTOR OF THE HAR THE AMERICAN AND THE AMERICAN AND THE AMERICAN AND THE AMERICAN AND THE A	ng in the second se
Corporate equity securities	7,497	6,493
Merchant banking investments	10,557	22,251
Warrants	15,570	22,945
Notes	2,197	1,920
Investments in shell companies	1,654	1,654
Other investments	505	893
Total financial instruments owned, at fair value	37,980	56,156
Private placement and other fees receivable	3,598	4,798
	7,706	4,796 5,735
Receivable from brokers, dealers & clearing agencies	The state of the property of the state of th	
Prepaid expenses	2,549	781
Property and equipment, net	3.263	2,773
Other assets	10,608	7,136
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net	601	1,961
Total Assets	\$ 81,103	94,886
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity		
Accrued compensation payable	\$ 19,287	10,098
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	4,947	6,217
Acquisitions related payables	690	2,826
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value	3,918	304
Total Liabilities	28,842	19,445
Commitments and contingencies (See Note 9)	entropolitikas kirjonarus saisteta saista. Paritum saista kirjonarus saista kirjonarus saista saista saista saista saista saista saista saista saista sa	
Stockholders' Equity		
Common stock, \$0.001, par value; 100,000,000 shares		
authorized; 33,484,098 and 35,918,222 issued as of		
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectivel	v	36
Preferred stock, \$0.001 par value; 1,000,000 authorized; none issued		
Additional paid-in capital	69,654	75,989
Treasury stock, 97,500 shares and 534,500 shares as of		- 3767
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectivel	y (260)	(1,034)
Accumulated deficit	(17,166)	(11,609)
Total Common Stockholders' Equity	52,261	63,382
Non-Controlling Interest	32,201 11:515	12,059
Total Stockholders' Equity		Provide the second of the second of the second of
- ·	52,261	75,441
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity	\$ 81,103	94,886

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts

Revenues: Investment banking \$ 87,245 90,433 52,473 Merchant banking 1,573 36,018 - Commissions 4,102 4,423 6,492 Conference fees 3,158 1,598 2,395 Principal transactions (12,597) (512) (13,687) Interest and other income 134 265 876 I total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188 Operating expenses: Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 800 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,284 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926		Year E	r 31,		
Investment banking		2010	2009	2008	
Merchant banking	Revenues:				
Commissions 4,102 4,423 6,492 Conference fees 3,158 1,598 2,395 Principal transactions (12,597) (512) (13,048) Interest and other income 134 265 876 Total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188 Operating expenses: Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - - Other <td< td=""><td>Investment banking</td><td>\$ 87,245</td><td>90,433</td><td>52,473</td></td<>	Investment banking	\$ 87,245	90,433	52,473	
Conference fees 3,158 1,598 2,395 Principal transactions (12,597) (512) (13,048) Interest and other income 134 265 876 Total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188 Operating expenses: Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Operating income (lo	EX. 250 CHO CO CO CO CONTRACTO A CONTRACTOR	1,573	36,018	-	
Principal transactions (12,597) (512) (13,048) Interest and other income 134 265 876 Total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188 Operating expenses: Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,938 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Other 2,998 2,998 2,908 Operating income (loss)	Commissions	4,102	4,423	6,492	
Interest and other income 134 265 876 Total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188 Coperating expenses:	Conference fees	3,158	1,598	2,395	
Total revenues 83,615 132,225 49,188	Principal transactions	(12,597)	(512)	(13,048)	
Operating expenses: Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 6666 - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net in	Interest and other income				
Compensation and benefits 54,653 62,437 34,639 Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,639 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) to common stockholders <t< td=""><td>Total revenues</td><td>83,615</td><td>132,225</td><td>49,188</td></t<>	Total revenues	83,615	132,225	49,188	
Conference expense 9,932 3,379 6,223 Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 6666 - - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Net income (loss) to common stockho	Operating expenses:				
Professional and consulting 6,504 7,450 6,276 Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) to common stockholders (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common share: (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted	Compensation and benefits	54,653	62,437	34,639	
Occupancy and equipment rentals 3,111 3,125 2,910 Advertising and marketing 1,520 1,582 809 Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) to common stockholders (5,577) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest (5,557) 27,298 (3/,437) Net income (loss) to common stockholders (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average	Conference expense	9,932	3,379	6,223	
Advertising and marketing Communication and market research Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles Bad debt expense Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 Income tax expense (benefit) Ceptain income (loss) Ret income (loss) Net income (loss) to common stockholders Basic Net income (loss) per common stockholders Basic S (0.15) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 1,582 809 1,582 2,750 2,646 2,750 2,646 2,750 2,984 2,928 2,928 2,926 667 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666	Professional and consulting	6,504	7,450	6,276	
Communication and market research 3,545 2,750 2,646 Depreciation and amortization 1,613 2,282 2,384 Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest - 18,695 - Net income (loss) per common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 0.73 0.73 Weighted average com	Occupancy and equipment rentals	3,111	3,125	2,910	
Depreciation and amortization	Advertising and marketing	1,520	1,582	809	
Business development 5,522 2,228 2,926 Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest - 18,695 - Net income (loss) per common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common stockholders Basic \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Communication and market research	•	•		
Office supplies 662 677 569 Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719 Bad debt expense 666 - - Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest - 18,695 - Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common stockholders \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	AND THE PARTY OF T		2,282	2,384	
Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles 933 1,327 21,719	Business development		,	,	
Bad debt expense	AND PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PERSON OF THE		677	569	
Other 2,998 2,908 3,042 Total operating expenses 91,659 90,145 84,143 Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest - 18,695 - Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common stockholders Basic \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Impairment of goodwill / other intangibles		1,327	21,719	
Operating income (loss) (8,044) 42,080 (34,955) Income tax expense (benefit) (2,487) (3,913) 2,482 Net income (loss) (5,557) 45,993 (37,437) Less: Net income to non-controlling interest 18,695 - Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common stockholders \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	- 田利		2,908	3,042	
Income tax expense (benefit)	Total operating expenses	91,659	90,145	84,143	
Income tax expense (benefit)	Operating income (loss)	(8,044)	42,080	(34,955)	
Less: Net income to non-controlling interest - 18,695 - Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (5,557) 27,298 (37,437) Net income (loss) per common share: Net income (loss) to common stockholders Basic \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375			,		
Less: Net income to non-controlling interest Net income (loss) to common stockholders Set income (loss) per common share: Net income (loss) to common stockholders Basic Diluted Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Net income (loss)	(5,557)	45,993	(37,437)	
Net income (loss) per common share: Net income (loss) to common stockholders Basic \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375		apa o de distribilio	18,695		
Net income (loss) to common stockholders \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Basic \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: 36,079 35,588 33,375	Net income (loss) to common stockholders	\$ (5,557)	27,298	(37,437)	
Basic \$ (0.15) 0.77 (1.12) Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Net income (loss) per common share:				
Diluted \$ (0.15) 0.73 (1.12) Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Net income (loss) to common stockholders				
Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Basic	\$ (0.15)	0.77	(1.12)	
Basic 36,079 35,588 33,375	Diluted	\$ (0.15)	0.73	(1.12)	
Diluted 36,079 37,399 333,375	Basic	•			
	Diluted	36,079	37,399	33,375	

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 Dollars in Thousands

		31,		
	,,,,,,,,,,, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	2010	2009	2008
Common stock:	/ WA			
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	36	35	34
Issuance of common stock				3
Treasury stock retirement		(3)	-	- (0)
Conversion of common stock to RSUs	4.25000			(2)
Balance, end of period	<u> </u>	33	36	35
Additional paid-in-capital:				
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	75,989	70,441	62,345
Stock based compensation		(73)	5,799	5,605
Treasury stock retirement		(6,031)		-
Other		(231)	(251)	2,491
Balance, end of period	\$	69,654	75,989	70,441
Accumulated Deficit:				
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	(11,609)	(38,907)	(1,470)
Net (loss) income		(5,557)	27,298	(37,437)
Balance, end of period	\$	(17,166)	(11,609)	(38,907)
Treasury stock, at cost:				
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	(1,034)	(1,034)	1
Treasury stock purchases Treasury stock retirement		(5, 260) 6,034		(1,034)
Balance, end of period	\$ 1	(260)	(1,034)	(1,034)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):				
Balance, beginning of the period Reclassification adjustment for unrealized gains (losses) on investments	\$			(141) 141
Balance, end of period	<u></u> \$	N 1937 - 1938 -		7 (2000) 340(00) (2000)
Non-controlling interest:				
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	12,059		
Deconsolidation of Aceras BioMedical	(5) is 195 T.V	(12,059)	makatung dan menghalan T	=
Net income to non-controlling interest Distribution to non-controlling interest			18,695 (6,636)	
Balance, end of period	5		12,059	**:
Total stockholders' equity	3	52,261	75,441	30,535
Comprehensive income (loss):				
Net income (loss)	\$	(5,557)	27,298	(37,437)
Other comprehensive income (loss)		- 4447776527164		141
Total comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(5:557)	27,298	(37,296)

RODMAN & RENSHAW CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 Dollars in Thousands

	Year I	inded December 3	31,
	2010	2009	2008
Cashflows from operating activities:			
Net income (loss)	\$ (5 <i>,55</i> 7)	45,993	(37,437)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization	1,613	2,282	2,384
Restricted cash	1,495	428	(3,371)
Stock based compensation	(73)	5,799	5,604
Realized gain on available for sale investments	- 7# + 5 cc + 4 	umminen i eta e Senamilia in E	141
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets	933	1.327	21,719
Deferred taxes, net	(2,459)	(4,342)	2.258
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
Financial instruments owned, at fair value	6,817	(54,184)	(711)
Private placement and other fees receivable	1,200	(2,823)	(1,007
Receivable frombrokers, dealers & cleaning agencies	(1,971)	(3,021)	(825)
Prepaid expenses	(1,768)	(342)	249
Other assets	(1,013)	(162)	(2,387)
and the state of t		, ,	
Financial instruments sold not yet purchased, at fair value	3,614	(1,057)	1,213
Accrued compensation payable	9,189	5,216	(1,258)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	(1,501)	8	2,440
Income taxes payable	- - 192	# # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #	(48)
Conferences deposits			(15)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	10,519	(4,878)	(11,051)
Cash flows frominvesting activities:			
Purchases of property and equipment	(1,555)	(2,506)	(1,183
Acquisition related payments	(2,257)	(3,665)	(12,585)
Proceeds from the sale of Huxley Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Huxley")	- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	13,272	
Distributions of Huxley sale proceeds to non-controlling interests	-	(6,636)	-
Purchase of intangible assets		:	(5,008)
Merchant banking investments	(700)	(1,367)	(4,150
Net cash used in investing activities	(4,512)	(902)	(22,926
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Purchase of treasury stock	(5,260)	=	(1,034
Distributions to members	<u>ja nordan ja ja ta</u>	<u> </u>	(1,440)
Net cash used in financing activities	(5,260)	-	(2,474
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	747	(5,780)	(36,451)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period	12,603	18,383	54,834
Cash and cash equivalents — end of period	13,350	12,603	18,383
Supplemental disclosures of cash flowinformation: Income taxes paid	\$ 3,600		244
Non-cash investing and financing activities:	and report that the first specific black (a) (a)	Ch STEEle Marketing (S)	
Accrued liabilities related to the acquisitions of Miller Mathis and COSCO	1.23		5,153
Additional paid-in-capital related to acquisition of COSCO	i i i i jagtaga katega =	alika ja sa difiniska 1000 (d -	2,491
Issuance of restricted stock to employees	ot alemades		
Change in fair value of financial instruments owned due to the		gyaffire i fyfy 2497, ga f	14945 HEF (1895)
deconsolidation of Aceras BioMedical	12 145		
	13,145	_ в 1,50#К1, (34), к эт	·
Other changes in assets and liabilities due to the			n 1945 Navanjana sela 215 dek
deconsolidation of Aceras BoMedical	(1,086)		

NOTE 1 -Organization, Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

General

Rodman & Renshaw Capital Group, Inc. ("RRCG") is a Delaware holding company which, through its various subsidiaries, is engaged in the investment banking business. RRCG's principal operating subsidiary is Rodman & Renshaw, LLC ("R&R"), a Delaware limited liability company formed on June 20, 2002. R&R is registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA"). RRCG and its subsidiaries, including R&R, are collectively referred to herein as the "Company".

Aceras BioMedical LLC

On May 12, 2008, the Company formed Aceras BioMedical LLC ("Aceras BioMedical"), a joint venture through which the Company, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC ("Aceras Partners"), will make principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, the Company formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary, Rodman Principal Investments, LLC ("RPI"), which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of the Company's principal-related businesses. RPI has made an initial investment commitment to Aceras BioMedical of up to \$30.0 million over five years to fund operations and the joint venture's principal investments in life science companies. At December 31, 2010, RPI's remaining commitment to Aceras BioMedical to fund operations and the joint venture's principal investments in life science companies was \$12.1 million. RPI receives 50% of Aceras BioMedical's economic interest in all investments made by Aceras.

The Company determined that Aceras BioMedical meets the definition of a variable interest entity ("VIE") as of December 31, 2010 because the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit Aceras BioMedical to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from the Company. The primary beneficiary of Aceras BioMedical is Aceras Partners because they have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and they have the right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the entity. Since the Company is not the primary beneficiary of Aceras BioMedical it therefore does not consolidate Aceras BioMedical.

As of May 1, 2009, the Company effected a modification to the agreements defining the ongoing obligations between Aceras BioMedical and the Company. Pursuant to the modification agreement, the annual fixed operating budget was reduced from \$2.5 million to \$1.0 million and the expected targeted investment amount in each prospective investee was reduced from \$2.0 million to \$0.5 million. Potential investments in excess of \$0.5 million require consent of the Company.

In October 2009, the Company announced that BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (Nasdaq: BMRN) acquired Huxley Pharmaceuticals, Inc., an Aceras privately held portfolio company. Under the terms of the transaction, BioMarin made payments of \$16 million to Huxley shareholders in 2009. An additional \$6.5 million based on the final approval of the purchased compound from the European Commission was paid in 2010. Furthermore, Huxley stockholders, which include the Company, may receive up to approximately \$36 million in milestone payments if certain U.S. sales and development milestones are met in the future.

Rodman & Renshaw, LLC

R&R is a full-service investment banking firm specializing in investment banking services to corporations and businesses and the trading and sale of primarily equity securities. R&R assists emerging growth companies through capital raising, strategic advice, research, and the development of institutional support. R&R is an introducing broker and clears all transactions through a clearing organization on a fully disclosed basis. Accordingly, R&R is exempt from rule 15c3-3 of the Exchange Act.

Non-Controlling Interests

The Company presents its non-controlling (minority) interests as equity (as opposed to as a liability or mezzanine equity), and presents its income allocated to both non-controlling interests and common stockholders. The portion of the consolidated interests in Aceras BioMedical, which are held directly by current and former employees of Aceras, were represented as non-controlling interests until the deconsolidation of Aceras BioMedical in 2010.

NOTE 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The Company's policy is to consolidate all entities in which it owns more than 50% of the outstanding voting stock and has control. In addition, the Company consolidates entities which lack characteristics of an operating entity or business for which it is the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the party who has the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and who has an obligation to absorb losses of the entity or a right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the entity. In situations where the Company has significant influence but not control of an entity that does not qualify as a variable interest entity, the Company applies the equity method of accounting. In those cases where its investment is less than 20% and significant influence does not exist, the investments are carried at fair value. Significant influence generally is deemed to exist when the Company owns 20% to 50% of the voting equity of an entity or when it holds at least 3% of a limited partnership interest. If the Company does not consolidate an entity or applies the equity method of accounting, it accounts for the investment at fair value.

All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Financial Instruments at Fair Value

Fair value generally is based on quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined based on other relevant factors, including dealer price quotations, price activity for equivalent instruments and valuation pricing models. Among the factors considered in determining the fair value of financial instruments are discount margins, weighted average spreads, discounted anticipated cash flows, the terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, as well as other measurements. Certain financial instruments have bid and ask prices that can be observed in the marketplace. For financial instruments whose inputs are based on bid-ask prices, mid-market pricing is applied and adjusted to the point within the bid-ask range that meets the Company's best estimate of fair value. For offsetting positions in the same financial instrument, the same price within the bid-ask spread is used to measure both the long and short positions.

The valuation process for financial instruments may include the use of valuation models and other techniques. Adjustments to valuations derived from valuation models may be made when, in management's judgment, either the size of the position in the financial instrument in a non-active market or other features of the financial instrument such as its complexity, or the market in which the financial instrument is traded require that an adjustment be made to the value derived from the models. An adjustment may be made if a financial instrument is subject to sales restrictions that would result in a price less than the quoted market price. Adjustments from the price derived from a valuation model reflect management's judgment that other participants in the market for the financial instrument being measured at fair value would also consider in valuing that same financial instrument and are adjusted for assumptions about risk uncertainties and market conditions. Results from valuation models and valuation techniques in one period may not be indicative of future period fair value measurements.

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, not yet purchased are stated at fair value, with related changes in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflected in principal transactions, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Equity interests in certain private equity securities and limited partnership interests are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value, which is often represented at initial cost until significant transactions or developments indicate that a change in the carrying value of the securities is appropriate. This represents the Company's best estimate of exit price. Generally, the carrying values of these securities will be increased or decreased based on company performance in those instances where market values are readily ascertainable by reference to substantial transactions occurring in the marketplace or quoted market prices.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the Company utilizes assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable firm inputs. The Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques the Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial instrument assets and liabilities carried at fair value have been classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as listed equities.

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies calibrated to observable market inputs. These models are primarily industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including discount margins, credit spreads, discounted anticipated cash flows, the terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, time value, yield curve, default rates, as well as other measurements. In order to be classified as Level 2, substantially all of these assumptions would need to be observable in the marketplace or able to be derived from observable data or supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace.

Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies utilizing significant inputs that are unobservable from objective sources. Included in this category are warrants, private securities, convertible notes and loans receivable received in conjunction with the Company's investment banking and merchant banking activities and limited partnership interests.

Value of Underwriter and Placement Agent Warrants

As a part of the Company's compensation for its activities as underwriter or placement agent, it may receive warrants exercisable to purchase securities similar to those that are offered and sold in the financing transaction. The Company values such warrants using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model ("Black-Scholes"). The model requires management to use five inputs: price, risk-free interest rate, exercise price, time remaining on the warrant and expected price volatility. When the Company initially receives a warrant in connection with, or prior to an initial public offering, its calculated volatility factor is based on the volatility of an index of comparable companies, since there is no price history for new publicly traded or private companies. As each warrant approaches its expiration date, its volatility factor is derived primarily from the implied volatility of traded options or warrants, when available, or the historical prices of its underlying common stock. Management cannot assure that it ultimately will be able to liquidate any of the warrants received in a way that will realize the value attributed to the warrants in the financial statements through the application of Black-Scholes.

The fair value of warrants is recorded in financial instruments owned, at fair value on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. When a warrant is received, its fair value is included in investment banking revenue as of the close of the date on which it is earned. Subsequently, any change in fair value is recorded as principal transactions. When a warrant is exercised, the fair value is adjusted to reflect the value of the securities purchased, net of the exercise price, and the adjustment amount is recorded as income or loss for the relevant period. If a warrant expires unexercised, the fair value is adjusted to zero and the decrease is recorded as a loss in the relevant period.

Value of Merchant Banking Assets

The value of the Company's investment in Aceras BioMedical's assets was determined based on a valuation as of December 31, 2010, taking into consideration cash received, cost of the investment, market participant inputs, estimated cash flows based on entity specific criteria, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, market conditions, liquidity, operating results and other qualitative and quantitative factors. The values at which the Company's investments are carried on its books are adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each quarter taking into account general economic and stock market conditions and those characteristics specific to the underlying investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally invests its excess cash in money market funds. Restricted cash is due to an escrow account pursuant to the Company's office lease agreement, a regulatory deposit in Hong Kong, and the Huxley Purchase Agreement.

Revenue Recognition

Investment Banking. Underwriting and placement agent revenues and fees from mergers and acquisitions and other financial advisory assignments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations when the services related to the underlying transaction are completed under the terms of the engagement. Expenses associated with such transactions are estimated and recorded when the related revenue is recognized or the engagement is otherwise concluded. Underwriting and placement agent revenues are presented net of related expenses.

When the Company receives warrants as a component of its compensation for investment banking services, revenue is recognized based on the fair value of those instruments. Revenue from the receipt of warrants is recognized on the date the warrants are received based on the estimated fair value of the securities received as estimated using Black-Scholes, which takes into account the exercise price, remaining life of the warrant, the current price and expected volatility of the underlying stock, expected dividends on the stock and the risk-free interest rate for the remaining term of the warrant. The following provides details of the Company's investment banking revenue for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ended December 31,

	2010	2009	2008
Private placements	\$ 44,665	48,150	28,586
Warrants	12,679	24,184	13,684
Strategic advisory	12,957	6,965	8,984
Underwritings	16,944	11,134	1,219
Total investment banking revenue	\$ 87,245	90,433	52,473

Principal Transactions. Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased (all of which are recorded on a trade-date basis) are carried at fair value with gains and losses reflected in principal transactions on a trade date basis.

Commissions. The Company's sales and trading business generates revenue from equity securities trading commissions paid by customers. Commissions are recognized on a trade date basis.

Conference Fees. The Company receives conference deposits from presenters, which are recorded as a liability and then recognized as revenue when the conference is conducted. The Company also makes advance payments for conference facilities, entertainment and related costs, which are recorded as prepaid expenses and then recognized as expenses when the conference is conducted.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets (generally three to ten years). Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of related leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized; instead, it is reviewed for impairment at least annually and written down when impaired. Goodwill is impaired when the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the implied fair value of the reporting unit.

Intangible assets consist of customer relationships and a trade name. Customer relationships and a trade name acquired in business combinations under the purchase method of accounting are recorded at their fair values net of accumulated amortization since the acquisition date. Customer relationships are recorded at cost net of accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives using a method of amortization that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed or otherwise used. Amortization is calculated using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Customer relationships	33%
Trade name	10%

The Company reviews its finite-lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of finite-lived intangible asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of a finite-lived intangible asset is measured by a comparison of its carrying amount to the undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset, which is determined based on discounted cash flows.

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, which includes restricted stock and restricted stock units ("RSUs") for which service has been provided. Diluted EPS includes the components of basic EPS and also includes the dilutive effects of restricted stock and RSUs for which service has not yet been provided and employee stock options.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Management evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets quarterly. In determining the possible future realization of deferred tax assets, the future taxable income from the following sources is taken into account: (a) the reversal of taxable temporary differences; (b) future operations exclusive of reversing temporary differences; and (c) tax planning strategies that, if necessary, would be implemented to accelerate taxable income into years in which net operating losses might otherwise expire.

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Management does not believe that the Company has any material uncertain tax position requiring recognition or measurement in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740-10.

The Company's policy is to classify penalties and interest associated with uncertain tax positions, if required, as a component of its income tax provision. As a result of having no material unrecognized tax benefits on uncertain tax positions, the Company has no material amounts for associated interest and penalties recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition or the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Legal Reserves

The Company recognizes a liability for a contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and when the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. When a range of probable loss can be estimated, the Company accrues the most likely amount of such loss, and if such amount is not determinable, then the Company accrues the minimum of the range of probable loss.

Reserves related to legal proceedings are established and maintained. The determination of these reserve amounts requires significant judgment on the part of management. The Company's management considers many factors including, but not limited to: the amount of the claim; the basis and validity of the claim; previous results in similar cases; and legal precedents and case law. Each legal proceeding is reviewed with counsel in each accounting period and the reserve is adjusted as deemed appropriate by management. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were no legal reserves accrued in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with GAAP, which requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

R&R is engaged in trading and provides a broad range of securities brokerage and investment services to institutional clients as well as private placement services to business entities. Counterparties to the R&R's business activities include issuers, hedge funds, broker-dealers and clearing organizations, banks and other financial institutions.

R&R uses a clearing broker to process transactions and maintain client accounts on a fee basis. R&R permits the clearing firm to extend credit to a client secured by cash and securities in the client's account. R&R's exposure to credit risk associated with the non-performance by its clients and counterparties in fulfilling their contractual obligations can be directly impacted by volatile or illiquid trading markets, which may impair the ability of clients and counterparties to satisfy their obligations to R&R. R&R has agreed to indemnify its clearing broker for losses incurred while extending credit to R&R's clients. R&R's policy is to review, as necessary, the credit standing of its clients and counterparties. Amounts due from clients that are considered uncollectible are charged back to R&R by the clearing brokers when such amounts become determinable.

Financial instruments sold but not yet purchased commit R&R to deliver specified securities at predetermined prices. The transactions may result in market risk since, to satisfy the obligation, R&R must acquire the financial instruments at market prices, which may exceed the values reflected on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Forgivable Loans

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company issued \$3.3 million of forgivable loans as a retention vehicle to certain new and existing employees. The Company issued an additional \$0.8 million and \$2.1 million in forgivable loans in 2010 and 2009, respectively. These loans are subject to a substantive service requirement by the employees and are amortized over the service period on a straight-line basis. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the net balance of the loans was \$0.9 million and \$2.7 million, respectively, which is included in other assets on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The Company recorded \$2.6 million, \$1.9 million, and \$0.8 million of compensation expense related to the amortization of these loans during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures its compensation cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on the date of grant, taking into account any post vesting selling restrictions, and recognizes the compensation expense over the requisite service period. Expenses associated with such grants are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures.

Stock based compensation for performance-based stock awards is recognized on a graded vesting basis over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures, if it is probable that the performance condition will be achieved.

Deferred stock based compensation costs with respect to shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units and stock options granted are presented as part of additional paid in capital in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity.

Reclassifications

Certain non-material reclassifications have been made to previously reported balances to conform to the current presentation.

NOTE 3 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 810. The Company adopted further accounting changes described in ASC 810, Consolidation Topic, as of January 1, 2010, which required that the party who has the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and who has an obligation to absorb losses of the entity or a right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the entity consolidate the variable interest entity. The changes to ASC 810, effective as of January 1, 2010, eliminated the quantitative approach previously applied to assessing the consolidation of a variable interest entity and required ongoing reassessments for consolidation. Starting on January 1, 2010, the Company deconsolidated its investment in Aceras BioMedical because its joint venture partner, Aceras Partners, not the Company, most significantly impacts Aceras BioMedical's economic performance.

ASU 210-06. In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 210-06, "Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements", which requires reporting entities to make new disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair-value measurements including significant transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair-value measurements and information on purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis in the reconciliation of Level 3 fair-value measurements. The FASB also clarified existing fair-value measurement disclosure guidance about the level of disaggregation, inputs, and valuation techniques. Some of the new and revised disclosures are required to be implemented in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2009 and others in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. The Company implemented the required disclosures in 2010.

NOTE 4 -Financial Instruments, at Fair Value

The following is a summary of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value as of December 31, 2010 by level within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands of dollars):

	Lev	el 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Assets: Financial instruments owned:					
Corporate equity securities	\$	5,700 \$		\$ 1,797	\$ 7,497
Merchant banking investments Warrants				10,557 15,570	10,557 15,570
Notes Investments in shell companies Other investments				2,197 1,654 505	2,197 1,654 505
		<u> </u>			
Total financial instruments owned	\$	5,700 \$		\$ 32,280	\$ 37,980
Liabilities: Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased	1	3,918 \$		\$	\$ 3,918
Total financial instruments sold, not yet purc	chased \$	3,918 \$ F-13		\$	\$ 3,918

The following is a summary of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value as of December 31, 2009 by level within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands of dollars):

	L	evel 1]	Level 2]	Level 3		Total
Assets:								
Financial instruments owned:					_		_	
Corporate equity securities	\$	5,180	\$		\$	1,313	\$	6,493
Merchant banking investments				_		22,251		22,251
Warrants						22,945		22,945
Notes				_		1,920		1,920
Investments in shell companies				 .		1,654		1,654
Other investments		_		·		893		893
Total financial instruments owned	\$	5,180	\$		\$	50,976	\$	56,156
Liabilities:								
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased	\$	304	\$		\$	_	\$	304
Total financial instruments sold, not yet purchased	\$	304	\$	18 ³ - 6	\$		\$	304

Financial instruments are assessed on a quarterly basis to determine the appropriate classification within the fair value hierarchy, as defined by ASC Topic 820. Transfers between fair value classifications occur when there are changes in pricing observability levels. Transfers of financial instruments among the levels occur at the end of the reporting period. There were no material transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 classified instruments during 2010 and 2009.

The following is a description of the valuation basis, including valuation techniques and inputs, used in measuring the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis:

Corporate Equity Securities.

Exchange Traded Equity Securities: Exchange-traded equity securities are measured based on quoted exchange prices, which are generally obtained from pricing services, and are categorized as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Non-exchange Traded Equity Securities: Non-exchange traded equity securities are categorized as Level 3 financial instruments and measured using valuation techniques involving quoted prices of, or market data for, comparable companies, similar company ratios and multiples (e.g., price/EBITDA, price/book value), discounted cash flow analyses and transaction prices observed for subsequent financing or capital issuance by the company. When using pricing data of comparable companies, judgment must be applied to adjust the pricing data to account for differences between the measured security and the comparable security (e.g., issuer market capitalization, yield, dividend rate, geographical concentration).

Merchant Banking Investments.

The value of the Company's investment in Aceras BioMedical's assets is categorized as Level 3 financial instruments and was determined based on a valuation performed as of December 31, 2010, taking into consideration cash received, cost of the investment,

market participant inputs, estimated cash flows based on entity specific criteria, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, market conditions, liquidity, operating results and other qualitative and quantitative factors. The values at which the Company's investments are carried on its books are adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each quarter taking into account general economic and stock market conditions.

Warrants.

As a part of the Company's compensation for its activities as underwriter or placement agent, it may receive warrants exercisable to purchase securities similar to those that are offered and sold in the financing transaction. The Company values such warrants using Black-Scholes. The model requires management to use five inputs: price, risk-free interest rate, exercise price, time remaining on the warrant and expected price volatility. These warrants are categorized as Level 3 financial instruments.

Notes.

Notes categorized within Level 3 are valued based on estimates of future cash flow incorporating assumptions regarding creditor default and recovery rates and consideration of the issuer's capital structure.

Investments in Shell Companies.

Investments in shell companies are categorized as Level 3 financial instruments and are valued at cost, which for this type of instrument approximates fair value.

Other Investments.

Other investments mostly consist of corporate loans categorized as Level 3 financial instruments. The loans are valued based on estimates of future cash flow incorporating assumptions regarding creditor default and recovery rates and consideration of the issuer's capital structure.

The following is a summary of changes in fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that have been classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2010 (in thousands of dollars):

]	orporate Equity ecurities	Merchant Banking	Warrants	Notes	Shells	Other	Total
Balance, December 31, 2009	\$	1,313	22,251	22,945	1,920	1,654	893	50,976
Purchases / issuances		510	700	14,673	1,051	-	_	16,934
Sales / settlements				(8,726)	(550)	94 	.—	(9,276)
Deconsolidation of Aceras BioMedical			(13,145)				· —	(13,145)
Realized and unrealized gains/(losses) (1)		(26)	751	(13,322)	(224)	<u></u>	(388)	(13,209)
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$	1,797	10,557	15,570	2,197	1,654	505	32,280
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) relating to instruments still held at December 31, 2010	\$	(26)	751	(12,490)	(225)		(388)	(12,378)

(1) Reported in principal transactions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, except for merchant banking investments.

The following is a summary of changes in fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that have been classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands of dollars):

	E	rporate quity curities	Merchant Banking	Warrants	Notes	Shells	Other	Total
Balance, December 31, 2008	\$	627		5,622	1,917	1,824	762	10,752
Purchases / issuances		618	697	25,266	48	_	_	26,629
Sales / settlements		·	(6,636)	(5,610)				(12,246)
Realized and unrealized gains/(losses) (1)		68	28,190	(2,333)	(45)	(170)	131	25,841
Balance, December 31, 2009	\$	1,313	22,251	22,945	1,920	1,654	893	50,976
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) relating to instruments still held at December 31, 2009	\$	68	21,554	(3,353)	(45)	(170)	131	18,185

(1) Reported in principal transactions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations., ecept for merchant banking investments.

NOTE 5 - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Miller Mathis & Co., LLC Acquisition

On March 24, 2008, the Company acquired Miller Mathis & Co., LLC ("Miller Mathis"), an independent mergers and acquisition advisor to the global steel industry. At December 31, 2010, other intangible assets related to this acquisition amounted to approximately \$0.2 million.

COSCO Capital Management, LLC Acquisition

On June 2, 2008, the Company consummated the acquisition of all the operating assets of COSCO Capital Management LLC, COSCO Capital Texas LP and Private Energy Securities, Inc. (collectively, "COSCO"), related companies that provide investment banking services to the oil and gas sectors, principally in the United States and Canada. At December 31, 2010, goodwill and other intangible assets related to this acquisition amounted to approximately \$0.4 million.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill was tested for impairment as of March 31, 2009 and as of June 30, 2009, after monitoring the relationship of the Company's market capitalization to both its book value and tangible book value and observing a decline in the Company's market capitalization related to both financial services industry-wide factors and to Company specific factors. The impairment tests resulted in the recognition of an impairment charge of \$1.3 million related to a COSCO contingent earn-out paid in cash.

In the second quarter of 2010, the Company wrote-off \$0.9 million related to a customer list acquired in 2008. The impairment charge was triggered by the troubled European markets outlook and the lack of prospective future revenue generation from European clients.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment as of September 30. Based on the September 30, 2010 and 2009 impairment tests, goodwill was not considered to be impaired and the fair value of the reporting units were determined to be substantially in excess of the carrying value of goodwill.

The following table represents a summary of the changes to goodwill and other intangible assets from December 31, 2008 through December 31, 2010 (in thousands of dollars):

		Goodwill	Customer Relationships	Trademark	Total
Balance, December 31, 2008	\$	1 - Jan 188	2,686	220	2,906
Additions		1,540	_	· —	1,540
Impairment		(1,327)		•	(1,327)
Amortization		_	(1,136)	(22)	(1,158)
Balance, December 31, 2009	\$	213	1,550	198	1,961
Additions		121		_	121
Impairment		in the state of th	(933)	en e	(933)
Amortization		: · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(525)	(23)	(548)
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$	334	92	175	601

NOTE 6 - Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net is comprised of the following as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands of dollars):

	December 31, 20	December 31, 2009	
Computer and office equipment	\$ 2,	809 \$ 2,203	
Furniture and fixtures	1,	,731 1,460	,
Leasehold improvements		098 2,420	
	7,	638 6,083	
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization	4,	3,310	
Property and Equipment, Net	\$ 3,	263 \$ 2,773	

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was \$1.1 million, \$1.1 million, and \$707,000, respectively.

NOTE 7 - Related Party Transactions

One of the Company's directors, who joined the board of directors on October 16, 2007, has also served as the chairman of the board of Cyalume Technologies, Inc. ("Cyalume") since May 31, 2006. During 2008, the Company recorded revenue in the amount of \$2.3 million in connection with services rendered to Cyalume. As of December 31, 2010, a promissory note in the amount of \$2.1 million was outstanding.

NOTE 8 - Warrants

The Company, issued common stock purchase warrants to the investors in its March 2007 \$20,000,000 private placement financing. The warrants, as adjusted, covered the purchase of up to 1,494,886 shares at an exercise price of \$6.35 and were exercisable through and including March 1, 2010. On March 1, 2010 all 1,494,886 warrants expired unexercised.

NOTE 9 - Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company leases its headquarters and other office locations under non-cancelable lease agreements which expire between 2008 and 2014.

On February 14, 2008, the Company entered into a new lease agreement for approximately 40,300 square feet of office space on the 20th floor at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY for a term which commenced in May 2008 and ends in October 2013. The monthly rental fee is \$252,000, with five months free rent after the payment of the first monthly lease payment on the commencement date. The monthly rent expense is \$233,000.

The Company's future minimum lease payments for all operating leases are as follows as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands of dollars):

	fice ases
page to the same and the	3.228
2012	3,181
2013	2,585
2014	56

Occupancy and rental expense amounted to \$3.1 million, \$3.1 million, and \$2.9 million in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Letter of Credit

In connection with the lease for the 20th floor at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY the Company issued a letter of credit in favor of the landlord in the sum of \$755,625, as a security deposit. The letter of credit expires in March 2012 but is subject to automatic extension.

Equity Commitment

The Company, through RPI, has made an investment commitment to Aceras Partners to fund operations and the joint venture's principal investments in life science companies. At December 31, 2010, and 2009, \$12.1 million and \$15.4 million of this commitment remained unfunded, respectively.

NOTE 10 - Net Capital Requirements

R&R is subject to various regulatory requirements, including the SEC's Uniform Net Capital Rule (SEC Rule 15c3-1). These regulations place limitations on certain transactions, such as repaying subordinated borrowings, paying cash dividends, and making loans to a parent, affiliates or employees. Broker-dealers are prohibited from such transactions which would result in a reduction of its total net capital to less than 120% of its required minimum net capital. Moreover, broker-dealers are required to notify the SEC before entering into any such transactions, which if executed, would result in a reduction of 30% or more of its excess net capital (net capital less the minimum requirement). The SEC has the ability to prohibit or restrict such transactions if the result is detrimental to the financial integrity of the broker-dealer.

At December 31, 2010, R&R had net capital of \$10.3 million, which was \$9.5 million in excess of its required net capital of \$0.9 million.

NOTE 11 - Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the current and deferred amount of income tax expense (benefit) in the statement of operations are comprised of the following (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ended December 31,

		2010 2009	1
Current: Federal States & City	\$ \$	(153) 125	297 132
Total current tax expense (benefit)		(28)	429
Federal		(1,902)	(3,399) (943)
Total deferred tax expense (benefit)		(2,459)	(4,342)
Total income tax expense (benefit)	\$	(2,487)	(3,913)

A reconciliation of total income taxes and the amount computed by applying the applicable federal income tax rate to earnings before income taxes follows (in thousands of dollars):

Year Ended December 31,

	2010	2009
Computed "expected" tax at 34% statutory rate	\$ (2,735)	14,307
Increase in taxes resulting from: Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income, net	189	84
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit	(324)	1,458
Income taxes attributable to non-controlling interest	2	(6,361)
Share-based compensation	309	1,184
Other items	24	754
Net operating loss related to dissolved entity	200	
Change in valuation allowance	(152)	(15,339)
Total	\$ (2,487)	(3,913)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below (in thousands of dollars):

		ember 31, 2010	December 31, 2009	
Deferred tax assets:			 	
Stock based compensation	\$	2,743		3,462
Intangible assets		8,731		8,881
Depreciation		180	State of	393
Unrealized gain on investments		287		199
Accrued expenses		833		961
Allocation for bad debt		73		141
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards		48		200
Other carryovers		212		133
		13,107		14,370
Valuation allowance		(48)	r waga rii . Ta	(200)
		13,059		14,170
Deferred tax liabilities:	-			
Warrant income		(2,406)		(5,457)
Gain on sale of investments		(3,852)	5440 F	(4,371)
		(6,258)	Propried	(9,828)
Net deferred tax asset	\$	6,801	(e <u></u>	4,342

In determining the possible future realization of deferred tax assets, the future taxable income from the following sources is taken into account; (a) the reversal of taxable temporary differences; (b) future operations exclusive of reversing temporary differences; and (c) tax planning strategies that, if necessary, would be implemented to accelerate taxable income into years in which net operating losses might otherwise expire.

The valuation allowance recorded in 2009 and 2010 relates to foreign net operating loss carry-forward deferred tax assets for which management has determined that it is not "more likely than not" that such deferred tax assets will be realized in the future. Aside from the valuation allowance recorded against its' foreign net operating loss carry-forward deferred tax asset, management has determined that it is "more likely than not" that the remainder of its' deferred tax assets are realizable in the future.

The Company's continuing practice is to recognize estimated interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters as a component of income tax expense. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had no material accruals for interest, penalties, or unrecognized tax benefits on uncertain tax positions.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various states, local and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is not currently under examination by the United States Internal Revenue Service or any other state, local, or foreign taxing jurisdictions.

The Company's income tax returns filed for tax years 2007, 2008 and 2009 are subject to examination by the U.S. federal, state, and foreign taxing jurisdictions. In addition, the Company does not anticipate any change in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.

NOTE 12 - Stock Based Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has an Incentive Compensation Plan ("Incentive Plan") which allows awards in the form of incentive stock options (within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code), nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, performance awards, restricted stock units, dividend equivalents or other share-based awards. The plan imposes a limit on the number of shares of our common stock that may be subject to awards.

The Incentive Plan allows for grants of restricted stock awards, whereby employees are granted restricted shares of common stock subject to forfeiture. The Incentive Plan also allows for grants of restricted stock units (RSUs). RSUs give a participant the right to receive fully vested shares at the end of a specified deferral period. One advantage of RSUs, as compared to restricted stock, is that the period during which the award is deferred as to settlement can be extended past the date the award becomes non-forfeitable, allowing a participant to hold an interest tied to common stock on a tax deferred basis. Prior to settlement, RSUs carry no voting rights associated with the stock ownership.

The Company has historically and generally expect to issue new shares of common stock when satisfying our issuance obligations pursuant to share based awards, as opposed to reissuing shares from our treasury stock.

The Company recorded (\$0.1 million), \$5.8 million, and \$5.6 million of stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. The 2010 total compensation cost of a \$0.1 million reversal was due to several large forfeitures offsetting stock-based compensation expense during the year.

The unamortized deferred stock-based compensation balance as of December 31, 2010 amounts to \$6.2 million and will be fully amortized through 2016.

A summary of stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2010 is as follows (shares in thousands):

Stock Options	Number of Options	Ave Exe	ghted erage ercise rice	Av G I	ighted verage trant Date v Value	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 Canceled	5,077 (970)	\$	4.04 3.91	\$	1.09 1.62		
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 No activity	4,107	\$	4.07	\$	0.96 —		
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	4,107	\$	4.07	\$	0.96	1.5 years	\$ 0.0 million
Exercisable at December 31, 2010	4,107	\$	4.07	\$	0.96	1.5 years	\$ 0.0 million

There were no stock option grants in 2010, 2009, and 2008.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during 2008 was \$95,892. No cash was received from the exercise of stock options by employees during 2010, 2009, and 2008.

Total compensation cost associated with stock options was \$0.1 million, \$1.4 million, and \$2.2 million in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

The following tables detail the activity of restricted stock (shares in thousands):

Restricted Stock	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
Balance at December 31, 2008 Forfeited Vested	(95)	2.31 2.28 2.31
Balance at December 31, 2009 Forfeited Vested	193 \$ (8) (97)	2.33 2.28 2.33
Balance at December 31, 2010	88 44 \$	2.33

Total compensation cost associated with restricted stock was \$0.2 million, \$0.2 million, and \$2.2 million in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

The following tables detail the activity of restricted stock units (shares in thousands):

RSUs

	Shares			Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value			
. •	Future No Future Service Service Required Required (1)		Future Service Required		No Futuro Service Required		
Balance at December 31, 2008	7,245		\$	0.79	-\$	Albara Islanda E	
Granted	2,132	TO THE PURE THE PROPERTY OF THE		0.81			
Forfeited	(3,321)		PRES.	0.73		943 to 1911 <u>-</u>	
Vested	(3,389)	3,389		1.93		1.93	
Distribution of underlying shares		(883)				4.52	
Balance at December 31, 2009	2,667	2,506	\$	1.00	\$	1.02	
Granted	5,337	-		1.32		_	
Forfeited	(1,169)	(1,916)		1.04		0.97	
Vested	(1,272)	1,272		1.07		1.07	
Distribution of underlying shares		(155)			i de l	0.95	
Balance at December 31, 2010	5,563	1,707	\$	1.28	2	1.13	

⁽¹⁾ Represents fully vested RSUs which are still subject to transferability restrictions.

The RSUs generally have vesting provisions for up to 5 years, with sale restrictions for additional years after vesting. The fair value of the RSUs was determined based on a protective put method model using a discount due to lack of marketability.

Total compensation cost associated with RSUs was (\$0.4 million), \$4.2 million and \$1.2 million in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. The 2010 total compensation cost of (\$0.4 million) was due to several large forfeitures offsetting stock-based compensation expense during the year.

As of December 31, 2010, there was \$6.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non vested restricted shares and RSUs awards, which is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-average vesting period of approximately 4.3 years.

NOTE 13 - Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

The table below reconciles weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic and diluted, for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 (weighted average shares in thousands):

	Year Ended December 31,			
	2010	2009	2008	
Shares outstanding, basic	36,079	35,588	33,375	
Stock options (1)	-	39		
Non-vested restricted stock and RSUs (1)		1,772		
Shares outstanding, diluted	36,079	37,399	33,375	

Due to the fact the Company had a net loss for the years ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2008, the outstanding shares for calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS for that period are the same.

NOTE 14 - Segment Reporting

Through June 30, 2009, the Company operated in one business segment. Commencing July 1, 2009, the Company began operating in two business segments, Capital Markets and Merchant Banking. The Capital Markets reportable segment includes our investment banking, sales and trading activities and research. The Capital Markets reportable segment is managed as a single operating segment that provides the following principal sources of revenue:

- investment banking fees, which are derived from corporate finance activities and strategic advisory services;
- realized and unrealized gains with respect to securities held for the Company's own account;
- commissions on sales and trading activities;
- conference fees; and
- other miscellaneous sources of revenues, such as interest.

Although the Company has multiple sources of revenue derived within Capital Markets, most of our revenue is derived from investment banking services and consists of private placement, underwriting and strategic advisory fees earned upon the successful completion of financing or other types of corporate transactions, such as mergers, acquisitions and dispositions.

The Merchant Banking segment is primarily comprised of operating activities related to Aceras BioMedical. On May 12, 2008, the Company formed Aceras BioMedical, a joint venture through which it, in partnership with Aceras Partners, LLC, makes principal investments in early-stage biotechnology and life sciences companies. In conjunction with the establishment of the joint venture, the Company formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary, RPI, which holds a 50% stake in Aceras BioMedical and serves as the holding vehicle for all of its principal-related businesses. At December 31, 2010, RPI's outstanding investment commitment to Aceras BioMedical over five years to fund operations and the joint venture's principal investments in life science companies was \$12.1 million. RPI receives 50% of Aceras BioMedical's economic interest in all investments made.

Dollars in Millions		Capital Iarkets	Merchant Banking	Non- Interest	Total
<u>2010</u>	-			***************************************	
Net revenues	\$	82.0	1.6		83.6
Expenses	\$	88.4	3.2	-	91.6
Operating income	\$	(6.4)	(1.6)	₩	(8.8)
Segment assets	\$	70.5	10.6	-	81.1
2009					
Net revenues	\$	96.2	17.3	18.7	132.2
Expenses	\$	80.1	10.0	-	90.1
Operating income	\$	16.1	7.3	18.7	42.1
Segment assets	\$	72.7	10.1	12.1	94.9
2008					
Net revenues	\$	49.2		un parke ili s e	49.2
Expenses	\$	83.1	1.0	-	84.1
Operating income	\$	(33.9)			(34.9)
Segment assets	\$	47.7	-		47.7

NOTE 15 - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 20098 (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

	First	Second	Third	Fourth
<u>2010</u>		No. 1997 times a Wood and an analysis of the control	ESSA SE CONST. A COMMONANT CO.	et a summer attended to
Revenues \$	27,727	16,389	17,362	22,137
Operating income (loss) \$	4,327	(7,959)	(6,027)	1,615
Net income (loss) \$	2,094	(4,571)	(4,273)	1,193
Earnings (loss) per share:				
Basic \$	0.06	(0.12)	(0.12)	0.03
Diluted \$	0.06	(0.12)	(0.12)	0.03
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:				
Basic	36,149	36,763	36,113	35,314
Diluted	37,818	36,763	36,113	37,466
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
2009	First	Second	Third	Fourth
<u>2009</u> Revenues \$	First 5,839	Second 33,395	Third 65,550	Fourth 27,440
그 [基本] [조리 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시 시		**************************************	matte (T. Testane D.A.Testana and A.A.C. Servenanese	and a diameter of the control of
Revenues \$	5,839	33,395	65,550	27,440
Revenues \$ Operating income (loss) \$ Net income (loss) \$	5,839 (12,297)	33,395 15,951	65,550 30,582	27,440 7,844
Revenues \$ Operating income (loss) \$ Net income (loss) \$ Earnings (loss) per share:	5,839 (12,297) (12,283)	33,395 15,951 15,928	65,550 30,582 15,540	27,440 7,844 8,113
Revenues \$ Operating income (loss) \$ Net income (loss) \$ Earnings (loss) per share:	5,839 (12,297)	33,395 15,951	65,550 30,582	27,440 7,844
Revenues \$ Operating income (loss) \$ Net income (loss) \$ Earnings (loss) per share: Basic \$ Diluted \$	5,839 (12,297) (12,283)	33,395 15,951 15,928	65,550 30,582 15,540	27,440 7,844 8,113
Revenues \$ Operating income (loss) \$ Net income (loss) \$ Earnings (loss) per share: Basic \$	5,839 (12,297) (12,283)	33,395 15,951 15,928	65,550 30,582 15,540	27,440 7,844 8,113

NOTE 16 - Subsequent Event

On January 5, 2011, the Company entered into a definitive merger agreement in connection with its proposed acquisition of Hudson Holding Corporation ("Hudson"). The terms of the merger agreement provides for each Hudson share to be exchanged for 0.0338 shares of the Company's common stock. The transaction is valued at approximately \$7 million, based upon a \$2.69 valuation per share of the Company's common stock. The exchange ratio and aggregate merger consideration are subject to adjustment, up or down, based upon the net liquid assets of Hudson at the effective time of the merger. The transaction, which is expected to close in the second quarter of 2011, is subject to Hudson stockholder approval, regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions.

